From: | (b)(6) |

Sent: Thu, 2 Feb 2023 22:00:27 -0700

To: Vaccine Safety (CDC); Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)
Subject: Fwd: Question about TGA's recent Tinnitus & Novavax decision
CCEMS:01820000562 [SEC=0FFICIAL]

Attachments: image001.png

Please see the message I received from the TGA.

Sincerely,
| (h)(A) |

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: ADR Reports <ADR.Reports@health.gov.au>

Date: Thu, Feb 2, 2023, 9:44 PM

Subject: RE: Question about TGA's recent Tinnitus & Novavax decision CCEMS:01820000562
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

To:

(b)(6)

Dear [ (b)(6)

Thank you for your enquiry to Therapeutic Goods Administration (TGA).

At the time of evaluation of this safety signal, there were 61 reports of tinnitus in the WHO
adverse event database [VigiBase] in association with Nuvaxovid worldwide. Of these, 30 (49%)
were from Australia. Following further investigation, this was viewed as evidence supportive of a
local signal and warranted inclusion in the Australian PI for Nuvaxovid.

Kind Regards

Tracey

Adverse Event and Medicine Defect Section

Pharmacovigilance Branch




Therapeutic Goods Administration
Australian Government, Department of Health and Aged Care

E: adr.reports@health.gov.au

PO Box 100, Woden ACT 2606, Australia

The Department of Health and Aged Care acknowledges First Nations peoples as the Traditional Owners of Country throughout
Australia, and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to all Elders

both past and present.

Original Message
From: Robert Edmonds| (b)(6) |

Received: Tue Jan 31 2023 08:19:57 GMT+1100 (Australian Eastern Daylight Time)
To: info@tga.gov.au <info@tga.gov.au>; info-Queue <info@tga.gov.au>;

Subject: Question about TGA's recent Tinnitus & Novavax decision

REMINDER: Think before you click! This email originated from outside our organisation. Only click links or open
attachments if you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear TGA,

My name is (hY(R) | am an administrator to an international group of nearly 1000 tinnitus adverse event
sufferers, this is our specific and only focus. | recently noticed your decision about tinnitus being added to the label of

Novavax (i.e. https://www.tga.gov.au/news/covid-19-vaccine-safety-reports/covid-19-vaccine-safety-report-27-01-
2023). | was wondering if there is any additional information or analysis you could provide about this update,
specifically regarding tinnitus. | emailed the

International Network of Special Immunization Services (https://insisvaccine.org/) that | have been a guest to
meetings about tinnitus they have hosted, unfortunately they have no additional information to provide about your
decision as well. Thus | am contacting you directly, trying to better understand your decision.

Sincerely,

(b)(6) |




"Important: This transmission is intended only for the use of the addressee and may contain
confidential or legally privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
notified that any use or dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you receive
this transmission in error please notify the author immediately and delete all copies of this

transmission."






To: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)
Subject: FW: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID
vaccines

Hi Tom: | have a reporter following up on tinnitus.

On 11/10/22 | sent her this email:
At this time, vaccine safety monitoring efforts in CDC have identified no evidence of a causal
association between COVID-19 vaccination and tinnitus or other hearing loss.
The VSD analysis is in progress but the Immunization Safety Office can’t discuss preliminary
findings.
No target date for completion has been given.
Thanks,
Martha

On 1/8/23 | updated her with the Dorney et al study and let her know that CDC doesn’t have enough
evidence to justify an epidemiologic study on tinnitus in VSD.

Current inquiry:
It sounds like that analysis was stopped at some point between November, when we last
corresponded about it, and now. Can you tell me when it was decided that the CDC doesn't have
enough evidence to justify the VSD analysis and what happened to the one that was started in

the fall? If you can give me a call at (b)(6) | would greatly appreciate it.

Thank you,
Tara Haelle

Proposed Response: (b)(5)

(b)(5)

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

From: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 10:11 AM
To: Su, John (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ezu2 @cdc.gov>; Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)



<liud@cdc.gov>; McNeil, Michael (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <mmm2@cdc.gov>
Subject: RE: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

And | believe the VSD analysis is in progress and we can’t discuss preliminary findings.

From: Su, John (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ezu2@cdc.gov>

Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 10:08 AM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>; McNeil, Michael
(CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <mmm2@cdc.gov>

Cc: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>

Subject: RE: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Hi Martha,

As Tom stated, monitoring of AEs (including tinnitus and sudden and sensarineural hearing loss)
is an ongoing process, so there’s no real “end point”. | can say at this time, vaccine safety monitoring
efforts in CDC have identified no evidence of a causal association between COVID-19 vaccination and
tinnitus or other hearing loss.

e John

From: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 9:50 AM

To: McNeil, Michael (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <mmm2@cdc.gov>; Su, John (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)
<ezu2@cdc.gov>

Cc: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>

Subject: RE: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Hi Mike and John:

We indicated to this reporter interested in doing a story on tinnitus after vaccination that we were doing
additional analysis in VSD. Do you know if that has been done? When we might have that completed. Is
there a timeline | can share with the reporter?

The reporter is just checking back — see chain below.

Thanks,
Martha

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

From: Tara Haelle | (b)(6)
Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 7:40 AM




To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>
Subject: Re: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Hi Martha,

I wanted to check back in to see if you had any update on the additional analysis that you
mentioned using VSD. Do you know when it will be started, when it will be complete, or when
results from it might be available? I need to file my story this week or next, so I'm wondering if
could still briefly speak with Dr. Shimabukuro, especially regarding the specific way CDC
conducts its statistical analysis for associations.

Thank you,
Tara

Tara Haelle « @tarahaelle

Pronouns: She/Her « 817.458.8133 CST (no PR calls please)

tarahaelle.net

Journalist, author, public speaker & AHCJ Medical Studies Core Topic Leader
Books: Vaccination Investigation, The Informed Parent, various children's titles

On Mon, Oct 3, 2022 at 7:56 AM Tara Haelle § (b)(6) |wrote:
Martha,
Thank you very much for the update. | look forward to hearing more when the analysis is complete.

Thanks,
Tara

—Sent from a buzzing brain probably clumsily dictating to a miniature magical box
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www.tarahaelle.com
Mob 817.458.8133

On Oct 3, 2022, at 7:53 AM, Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov> wrote:

Hi Tara:

Received word from Dr. Shimabukuro that he would like to delay this interview due to an additional
analyses that CDC is going to do in one of the safety monitoring systems known as the Vaccine Safety
Datalink (VSD). We may have updated information on tinnitus and he would prefer to hold off until the
analysis is completed to avoid giving you outdated information.



| don’t have a target date for completion at this time. Dr. Shimabukuro indicated that it would be
“relatively soon.”

| will try to keep you informed, however, please feel free to check back with me.

Thanks,

Martha

From: Tara Haelle| (b)(6) |

Sent: Friday, September 30, 2022 5:31 PM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liud@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Martha,

A Monday interview would be fantastic. Thank you so much. Let me know what time works best.
Thanks also for the note about CDC not commenting on non-CDC studies. I'll keep that in mind
and adjust my questions accordingly.

Thank you,
Tara

These are incredibly tough, strange times. Feeling awful and frustrated you can't
"snap out of it?" Read this. If you're thinking of hurting yourself, please call the
Suicide Hotline at 1-800-273-8255 or text 741741. You matter.

Tara Haelle « ®@tarahaelle

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

On Fri, Sep 30, 2022 at 7:39 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov> wrote:

Hi Tara — | can try to arrange a short interview on Monday. Dr. Shimabukuro i| (b)(6)

(b)(6) I, s0 his schedule

will be impossible.

Please note, as a general rule, CDC does not comment on studies/findings that did not involve CDC
experts and were conducted outside of the agency.

Thanks,
Martha



From: Tara Haelle | (b)(6) |

Sent: Friday, September 30, 2022 6:22 AM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Martha,

Thank you very much for sending these along. In reading the responses, I notice that several of
the responses explain things I'm already aware of, such as the difference between incidence and
prevalence; the difference between VAERS and VSD; and the substantial limitations of a passive
monitoring system like VAERS. (I've reported on vaccine safety for over a decade, so I'm very
familiar with all these issues and the CDC's mechanisms.)

I'm not sure if my questions weren't worded well or there was a misunderstanding otherwise,
but I have follow-up questions to try to get better clarification on what I was asking. Would it be
possible to set up a brief phone call with Dr. Shimabukuro to discuss this issue? It doesn't seem
as though email questions are adequate for the level of specificity and nuance I'm seeking for
this story. I'm a little different than most reporters in writing about vaccine adverse events
because I've reported on them for so long, and I'm very familiar with all the tropes and
misconceptions promoted by those who are anti-vaccine or who otherwise are unfamiliar with
the specifics of CDC vaccine safety surveillance and research.

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

On Thu, Sep 29, 2022 at 7:07 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov> wrote:
Hi Tara:

Yes, | have responses from Dr. Shimabukuro, Director, CDC’s Immunization Safety Office. | will pass
along your additional questions.

Please see below:
A recent paper by Harpaz et al (doi: 10.1007/s40264-022-01186-z) suggests a strong
association exists in VAERS reports for tinnitus and each of the three COVID-19 vaccines
initially authorized by the FDA, but that the association is masked because of the high number



of overall reports. Is this something that the CDC safety researchers have considered and/or
that they are looking into?

CDC did not participate in this analysis and recommends that you contact the authors if you have
guestions about their analysis.

One of the challenges of considering tinnitus as a presumptive AE is that it is so common as a
background condition in the general population. Does a condition’s prevalence in the general
population affect how CDC safety researchers consider potential associations from AEs reported in
VAERS? Would shortening the time after vaccination that they looked for an association be likely to
change any likelihood of finding an association?

Per CDC (Principles of Epidemiology | Lesson 3 - Section 2 (cdc.gov)), “Prevalence refers to
proportion of persons who have a condition at or during a particular time period, whereas
incidence refers to the proportion or rate of persons who develop a condition during a particular
time period. So prevalence and incidence are similar, but prevalence includes new and pre-
existing cases whereas incidence includes new cases only.” For vaccine safety monitoring, we
are most concerned with incident cases, or new cases occurring following vaccination. Expected
incidence (background incidence) is taken into consideration when conducting vaccine safety
evaluations.

A vaccine adverse event is an adverse health event or other outcome or event (e.g., a medical
error) occurring in temporal association with a vaccination. CDC monitors all VAERS data and can
take into consideration incident versus prevalent conditions when information is available in the
report, as well as biologically plausible risk intervals for symptom onset of the adverse event
following vaccination. VAERS is a spontaneous reporting (passive surveillance) system that
accepts all reports regardless of the plausibility of the vaccine causing the event or the clinical
seriousness of the event. VAERS is a signal detection (hypothesis generating) system and is not
designed to determine causality.

Many of the individuals | have spoken to have said that they either did not file a VAERS report
because they were told it was pointless, or they asked their doctor to file one and the doctor
refused or referred them to a different doctor to report it (who then refused or referred them
back to the original doctor). | heard this frequently enough to wonder whether tinnitus was
underreported in VAERS. How likely might it be that tinnitus is similarly underreported in the
healthcare systems involved in VSD? Is there a way to take this into account in analyses of a
potential association?

The Vaccine Safety Datalink (VSD) is an electronic health record (EHR)-based system that collects
data (in the EHR) on patients with health insurance when they receive healthcare. This is one of
the main differences between passive surveillance in VAERS and active surveillance in VSD;
VAERS depends upon people filing reports, while in VSD, a diagnosis of tinnitus would be
recorded in the EHR during a patient visit as part of standard healthcare practice.VSD data are
not impacted by the types of reporting biases inherent to VAERS.

Is there any possibility that the CDC will initiate another study in the future, using VSD again
or another data set, to investigate tinnitus as a potential AE correlated with any of the COVID-
19 vaccines? Or is the matter considered settled? Why or why not?



CDC will continue to monitor COVID-19 vaccine safety in VAERS, VSD, and other systems. If we
observe data that indicates a potential safety problem we will further investigate. Additional
assessments of safety signals may include epidemiologic studies if appropriate.

It seems statistically possible that a condition that has a naturally high prevalence in the
general population (as tinnitus does) but is very rare as a vaccine adverse event could easily
be missed as a true signal by traditional VSD analysis methods. How, if at all, have CDC safety
researchers accounted for this possibility. (I'd wager that tinnitus is likely the most common
condition that's ever been considered as a serious AE, which would make it fairly unique
among presumptive AEs.)

Please refer to our original response and the above response to your question on common
conditions. Other relatively common conditions have been evaluated in vaccine safety research,
such as febrile seizure and shoulder injury. While tinnitus prevalence in the general population is
relatively high, the incidence of new onset tinnitus is a different concept.

VSD uses TreeScan data mining methods, which can detect pattens of clustering of diagnoses in
a post-vaccination observation period, even if few diagnoses are made (because the diagnosis is
rare). To date, VSD TreeScan data mining has not observed clustering of tinnitus in a post-
vaccination observation period.

Thanks,
Martha

From: Tara Haellg (b)(6)

Sent: Thursday, September 29, 2022 5:31 AM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: FW: National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Hi Martha,

I wanted to check in on the status of the questions I sent, and I had some additional questions
that arose in the process of my reporting on this story. Those additional questions are below. I
certainly realize this will extend the time Dr. Shimabukuro needs to respond to my questions.

6) The WHO identified tinnitus as having a signal with the adenovirus vector vaccines (see
attached), and the European Medicines Agency listed tinnitus as a possible side effect from the
adenovirus vector vaccine, but the CDC has not. Can you comment on why the CDC has not
followed the WHO's and EMA's lead on this and why an association would be seen with
adenovirus vector vaccines?

7) When the CDC did their investigation into any associations between tinnitus and vaccination,
did that analysis only look at a binary association (tinnitus did/did not occur within 9o days
after vaccination), or did the analysis look at temporal patterns within that 9o-day period (ie,
whether there was a clustering of tinnitus reports within a shorter time period post-vaccination
vs tinnitus reporting that was consistently spread out across the 9o days)?

8A) Tinnitus in the general population nearly always follows the same pattern as gradual
hearing loss, with an estimated 90% of people who have tinnitus also having hearing loss. When



the CDC did their analysis of tinnitus and COVID-19 vaccines, did that analysis also look at
whether the people who reported tinnitus also had concurrent hearing loss?

8B) In the WHO report, only 15% of those who reported tinnitus also had hearing loss,
suggesting that their tinnitus was distinct from the "usual” tinnitus that develops in the general
population. Another unpublished analysis of data looking at tinnitus and COVID-19 vaccines
similarly found that a very low percentage of people who experienced tinnitus after the
vaccination also had hearing loss. Can you comment on whether this information might
strengthen the potential possibility of an association between tinnitus and COVID-19 vaccines?

Thank you,
Tara

These are incredibly tough, strange times. Feeling awful and frustrated you can't
“snap out of it?" Read this. If you're thinking of hurting yourself, please call the
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

On Thu, Sep 22, 2022 at 2:13 PM Tara Haelle (b)(6) wrote:
Thank you.

These are incredibly tough, strange times. Feeling awful and frustrated you can't
"snap out of it?" Read this. If you're thinking of hurting yourself, please call the
Suicide Hotline at 1-800-273-8255 or text 741741. You matter.

Tara Haelle - @tarahaelle

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




On Thu, Sep 22, 2022 at 11:56 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov> wrote:
Hi Tara:

Dr. Shimabukuro will look at these, but he will not have time to get back to you until next week.
Thanks for your patience,
Martha

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

From: Tara Haelle | (b)(6) |

Sent: Thursday, September 22, 2022 2:31 AM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: FW: National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Martha,

Thank you for this. Is that VSD analysis published somewhere? If so, could you share the
citation with me? Meanwhile, I've adjusted some of the questions below, including the order of
them.

Thanks,
Tara

—A recent paper by Harpaz et al (doi: 10.1007/s40264-022-01186-z) suggests a strong
association exists in VAERS reports for tinnitus and each of the three COVID-19 vaccines
initially authorized by the FDA, but that the association is masked because of the high number
of overall reports. Is this something that the CDC safety researchers have considered and/or that
they are looking into?

—One of the challenges of considering tinnitus as a presumptive AE is that it is so common as a
background condition in the general population. Does a condition’s prevalence in the general
population affect how CDC safety researchers consider potential associations from AEs reported
in VAERS? Would shortening the time after vaccination that they looked for an association be
likely to change any likelihood of finding an association?

—Many of the individuals I have spoken to have said that they either did not file a VAERS report
because they were told it was pointless, or they asked their doctor to file one and the doctor
refused or referred them to a different doctor to report it (who then refused or referred them
back to the original doctor). I heard this frequently enough to wonder whether tinnitus was
underreported in VAERS. How likely might it be that tinnitus is similarly underreported in the
healthcare systems involved in VSD? Is there a way to take this into account in analyses of a
potential association?



—Is there any possibility that the CDC will initiate another study study in the future, using VSD
again or another data set, to investigate tinnitus as a potential AE correlated with any of the
COVID-19 vaccines? Or is the matter considered settled? Why or why not?

—It seems statistically possible that a condition that has a naturally high prevalence in the
general population (as tinnitus does) but is very rare as a vaccine adverse event could easily be
missed as a true signal by traditional VSD analysis methods. How, if at all, have CDC safety
researchers accounted for this possibility. (I'd wager that tinnitus is likely the most common
condition that's ever been considered as a serious AE, which would make it fairly unique among
presumptive AEs.)

These are incredibly tough, strange times. Feeling awful and frustrated you can't
"snap out of it?" Read this. If you're thinking of hurting yourself, please call the
Suicide Hotline at 1-800-273-8255 or text 741741. You matter.

Tara Haelle » ®@tarahaelle

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

On Wed, Sep 21, 2022 at 2:52 PM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liud@cdc.gov> wrote:
Hi Tara:

CDC now has a statement that | am including below — not sure if this will have an impact on your list of
questions. Let me know if you need to adjust any of them:

CDC is aware of reports to the Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting System (VAERS) of tinnitus
occurring in temporal association with COVID-19 vaccination (i.e., following vaccination).
Tinnitus is a common condition and heterogenous in clinical presentation and course. There are
some established risk factors, such as exposure to loud noise; however, in many cases, no
discernable cause for tinnitus is identified.

Hundreds of millions of people have received COVID-19 vaccinations under the most intensive
monitoring in U.S. history. Because so many people have been vaccinated and because tinnitus
is so common in the population, temporally-associated cases are expected, with some expected
to occur shortly after vaccination. To further evaluate concerns about reports of tinnitus
following COVID-19 vaccination, CDC conducted an analysis in the Vaccine Safety Datalink (VSD).
Unlike VAERS, which relies primarily on voluntary reports from healthcare providers, patients,
and others, the VSD uses data from electronic health records. Consequently, the VSD data are
less likely to be affected by the reporting biases and other biases that impact spontaneous
reporting patterns to VAERS and data quality. The VSD looked for clustering of tinnitus
diagnoses in COVID-19 vaccinated patients during a post-vaccination observation period out to



70 days after vaccination. In the VSD’s patient population of approximately 12 million people
with 6.6 million COVID-19 vaccine doses administered, to date no clustering of tinnitus
diagnoses has been observed post-vaccination.

Currently, the information from vaccine safety monitoring systems does not suggest a link
between COVID-19 vaccination and tinnitus. CDC will continue to monitor the safety of COVID-
19 vaccines and continue to evaluate the outcome of tinnitus as additional data are collected.

Thanks,
Martha

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

From: Tara Haellg (6)(6) |

Sent: Wednesday, September 21, 2022 3:27 PM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: FW: National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Hi Martha,

It took me a while to pull these questions together because most of my questions will depend on
the answers he gives to the first questions. In other words, I'm almost certainly going to have
follow-up questions in response to these because of the nature of the questions. I've tried to
include that in these questions, but I wanted to give you a heads up about likely having follow-
up questions. If it's at all possible to set up a phone or Zoom interview, that would be far
preferable given the challenging nature of discussing adverse effects and vaccines and nuance
required in those discussions.

Please let me know when Dr. Shimabukuro will be able to respond to these. If it's possible by the
end of this week, that would be particularly helpful.

Thank you,
Tara Haelle

—Has the CDC investigated the potential association between tinnitus and COVID-19 vaccines?
If so, can you tell me what the CDC vaccine safety researchers have done and found? Or, if not,
can explain the reasoning behind that decision?

—One of the challenges of considering tinnitus as a presumptive AE is that it is so common as a
background condition in the general population. Does a condition’s prevalence in the general
population affect how CDC safety researchers consider potential associations from AEs reported
in VAERS?

—Does the CDC have plans to initiate a case control or other epidemiological study, using VSD
or another data set, to investigate tinnitus as a potential AE correlated with any of the COVID-19



vaccines? Why or why not?

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

On Thu, Sep 1, 2022 at 7:24 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov> wrote:

Hi Tara:

Your request was forwarded to me. | work closely with Dr. Shimabukuro on media inquiries.

Would it be possible for you to send us a list of questions that you would like him to address. It would be
easier for him to respond in writing.

Thanks,
Martha

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

From: Tara Haelle | (b)(6) |

Sent: Wednesday, August 31, 2022 6:32 AM

To: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>; Shimabukuro, Tom
(CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayvb6@cdc.gov>

Subject: National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines




Hello Dr. Shimabukuro,

I'm not sure if you remember me, but I believe we met while I was on a CDC fellowship for
AHCJ a number of years ago. I've been writing about vaccines for more than a decade, and I'm
now writing an article for National Geographic about whether there is adequate evidence to
determine whether tinnitus could be a potential adverse event linked to any of the COVID-19
vaccines.

I spoke with Patsy Stinchfield, and she mentioned you would be a good source on this since I
have questions about the CDC's process in going through VAERS reports and determining what
to further investigate using VSD or other epi studies.

Would you have time for an interview this week or next to discuss this topic for my article?

Thank you,
Tara Haelle

P.S. I realize discussing vaccine AEs with a reporter can be a precarious decision, so please feel
free to contact others who might vouch for my credibility and reliance on the evidence, such as
Dan Salmon, Paul Offit, Patsy Stinchfield, Walter Orenstein, Bruce Gellin, or Saad Omer, all of
whom are familiar with me and my work.

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




From: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)

Sent: Tue, 7 Feb 2023 20:05:58 +0000

To: Tara Haelle

Subject: FW: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID
vaccines

Attachments: Dorney et al._2022.pdf

Tara... please see enclosed document.

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

Dear Ms. Haelle,

CDC continues to monitor the safety of COVID-19 vaccines and has not observed any changes in patterns
or any new findings for tinnitus. You might consider talking to the authors of a fairly recently published
article on prevalence of new-onset tinnitus following vaccination (attached). This study used a large
electronic heath record database and is not subject to many of the limitations of anecdotal/spontaneous
reports and small clinical assessments. CDC was not involved in this work and cannot comment on it and
that’'s why we suggest you might want to speak to the authors directly.

From: Tara Haelle| (b)(6) |

Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 2:12 AM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Cc: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>; Shimabukuro, Tom
(CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Hi Martha and Dr. Shimabukuro,

We are looking to publish the article at National Geographic on tinnitus as a
possible/presumptive adverse event of COVID vaccines this week. The story was put on hold
while I was out of the country from the holidays through January. I wanted to check in to see if
you had any additional information for me regarding CDC's progress on investigating this issue
since we last corresponded. If it's at all possible to speak with Shimabukuro in the next few days
before it's published, please let me know.

Thank you,
Tara Haelle

Tara Haelle » ®@tarahaelle » @tarahaelle@mastodon.social



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

On Mon, Nov 14, 2022 at 9:11 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov> wrote:
Hi Tara — unfortunately | don’t have any more information to share at this time.

Martha Sharan

Public Affairs

CDC/Division of Healthcare Quality Promotion
Off.: 404-639-2683

Cell: 404-998-1787

From: Tara Hael| (b)(6) |

Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 11:22 PM

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4@cdc.gov>

Subject: Re: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Thank you! Do you know if it's possible to find out the precise methodology that the ISO is using
for the VSD analysis?

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

On Thu, Nov 10, 2022 at 9:31 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liud@cdc.gov> wrote:
Hi Tara:

Here’s what the Immunization Safety Office is telling me:

At this time, vaccine safety monitoring efforts in CDC have identified no evidence of a causal
association between COVID-19 vaccination and tinnitus or other hearing loss.

The VSD analysis is in progress but the Immunization Safety Office can’t discuss preliminary findings.



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

Sent: Thursday, November 10, 2022 9:51 AM

To: Tara Haellg (b)(6) |

Subject: RE: CDC Response - National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines

Checking on this for you!

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
results from it might be available? I need to file my story this week or next, so I'm wondering if I
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
Books: Vaccination Investigation, The Informed Parent, various children’s titles




On Mon, Oct 3, 2022 at 7:56 AM Tara Haelle (b)(6) wrote:
Martha,
Thank you very much for the update. | look forward to hearing more when the analysis is complete.

Thanks,
Tara

—Sent from a buzzing brain probably clumsily dictating to a miniature magical box

s 3k ok ok o ok ok ok ok o ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok ok sk ok Kok ok

www.tarahaelle.com
Mob 817.458.8133

On Oct 3, 2022, at 7:53 AM, Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4 @cdc.gov> wrote:

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

From: Tara Haelle 4 (b)(6) |

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

On Fri, Sep 30, 2022 at 7:39 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liud@cdc.gov> wrote:

Hi Tara — | can try to arrange a short interview on Monday. Dr. Shimabukurg (b)(6)
I (b)(6) | so his schedule
will be impossible.

Please note, as a general rule, CDC does not comment on studies/findings that did not involve CDC
experts and were conducted outside of the agency.

Thanks,
Martha

From: Tara Haellg (b)(6) |

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

On Thu, Sep 29, 2022 at 7:07 AM Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <liu4 @cdc.gov> wrote:
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
suggesting that their tinnitus was distinct from the "usual" tinnitus that develops in the general
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

On Thu, Sep 22, 2022 at 2:13 PM Tara Haelle| (b)(6) |wrote:
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

From: Tara Haellq (b)(6)

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
guestions. Let me know if you need to adjust any of them:

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
following COVID-18 vaccination, CDC conducted an analysis in the Vaccine Safety Datalink (VSD).
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

From: Tara Haell| (b)(6) |

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

From: Tara Haelle| (b)(6)
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
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Prevalence of New-Onset Tinnitus after COVID-19 Vaccination with
Comparison to Other Vaccinations

Ian Dorney, BS ©©; Lukas Bobak, BS; Todd Otteson, MD, MPH; David C. Kaelber, MD, PhD, MPH

Objective: To investigate how often patients are diagnosed with new-onset tinnitus within 21 days after COVID-19 vacci-
nation in comparison to after three other common vaccinations: influenza, Tdap (tetanus, diphtheria, and acellular pertussis),
and polysaccharide pneumococcus.

Methods: The TriNetX Analytics Network, a federated health research network that aggregates the de-identified elec-
tronic health record (EHR) data of over 78 million patients, was queried for patients receiving each vaccination. Instances of
new-onset tinnitus within 21 days of vaccination were recorded and reported.

Results: Out of 2,575,235 patients receiving a first dose of the mRNA COVID-19 vaccine without any prior tinnitus diagno-
sis, 0.038% (95% Cl: 0.036%-0.041%) of patients had a new diagnosis of tinnitus within 21 days. There was a higher risk of a
new tinnitus diagnosis after the influenza vaccine (RR: 1.95, 95% CI: 1.72-2.21), Tdap vaccine (RR: 2.36, 95% CI: 1.93-2.89),
and pneumococcal vaccine (RR: 1.97, 95% CI: 1.48-2.64) than after the first dose of the COVID-19 vaccine. There was a lower

Level of Evidence: Level 3

risk of a new tinnitus diagnosis after the second dose of COVID-19 than after the first dose (RR: 0.80, 95% CI: 0.71-0.91).
Conclusion: The rate of newly diagnosed tinnitus acutely after the first dose of the COVID-19 vaccine is very low. There
was a higher risk of newly diagnosed tinnitus after influenza, Tdap, and pneumococcal vaccinations than after the COVID-19
vaccine. The present findings can help to address COVID-19 vaccine hesitancy during the ongoing pandemic.
Key Words: COVID-19 Vaccine, Epidemiology, Tinnitus, Vaccine Adverse Effect.
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INTRODUCTION

Vaccine hesitancy and fear of adverse effects from
the mRNA COVID-19 vaccine are becoming more wide-
spread and represent a significant national health con-
cern. Consequently, the sequelae of the COVID-19 vaccine
have been the topic of significant research throughout the
COVID-19 pandemic. In recent months, there has been
growing interest in tinnitus as a potential adverse effect
of the mRNA COVID-19 wvaccination. Recent case
reports' ™ describe patients experiencing life-altering tin-
nitus within days of the COVID-19 wvaccination that
may be accompanied by impaired hearing, significantly
affect a patient’s quality of life, and last for months.
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Post-vaccination otologic symptoms observed within
30 days of COVID-19 vaccination included tinnitus,
hearing loss, dizziness, or vertigo.>® Earlier this year,
555 cases of sudden sensorineural hearing loss after
COVID-19 vaccination were reported in the North
American Vaccine Related Adverse Effects System
(VAERS) were investigated and no association was found
between sudden sensorineural hearing loss and vaccina-
tion.” Symptom patterns and potential pathophysiologic
mechanisms for post-vaccine tinnitus were discussed in a
recent review of over 12,000 cases of tinnitus post-COVID-
19 vaccination, reported by the CDC.® A 2021 study of
national vaccine adverse event databases in Italy and the
United Kingdom examining audiovestibular pathologies
related to COVID-19 vaccination investigated tinnitus as
a possible adverse effect but was unable to control for
timing of symptomatology or provide comparisons to other
vaccinations.® To our knowledge, there has not been a
large-scale investigation into the prevalence of new
tinnitus diagnoses after the COVID-19 vaccination in
comparison to other common vaccinations.

Using a sample size of over 2.5 million patients who
received a COVID-19 vaccine, the present study aims to
investigate how often episodes of new-onset tinnitus are
diagnosed within 21 days after vaccination. The purpose of
this investigation is to use population-level data to exam-
ine how frequently newly diagnosed tinnitus occurs after
COVID-19 vaccination in comparison to other common
vaccinations for influenza, Tdap (tetanus, diphtheria, and
acellular pertussis), and polysaccharide pneumococcus.
The large sample size provides a unique opportunity to

Dorney et al.: New-Onset Tinnitus After Covid-19 Vaccination
1

ASUANT SUCII) aaneas?)y ajqesdde s Ag pawsaaod e soanme wi) (950 Jo sajm 30§ ABIgrT MU £9)14y U0 (SEIPUOS-PUr-SuLe Ao {a] e e auruoy ssdil)) Suompuey pue swia ] gy 335 (205 2i0e0] ue Aeigry auugy £ap B0 ol LLSHOIN 010 49 caroe SRpon 0 g Sajim L



acquire meaningful data for this likely rare adverse effect.
To give a frame of reference for the number of diagnosed
tinnitus cases observed after COVID-19 vaccination, large
populations of patients receiving other common vaccina-
tions were compared to the mRNA COVID-19 group.
These three other vaccination groups were analyzed as
secondary outcomes and served as a reference group for
the first dose COVID-19 vaccinated group.

MATERIALS AND METHODS

A retrospective cohort design was implemented using the
TriNetX Analytics Network, a federated health research network
that aggregates the de-identified electronic health record (EHR)
data of over 78 million patients across 45 health care organiza-
tions (HCOs) within the US. There were 78,058,186 patients
with any EHR contained in the US Collaborative Network of the
TriNetX platform that was queried for vaccination events. Five
patient groups were identified (Supplementary Cohort Criteria):

1. Received First mRNA COVID-19 Vaccine from December
15, 2020 to March 1, 2022

2. Received Second mRNA COVID-19 Vaccine from December
15, 2020 to March 1, 2022

3. Received Influenza Vaccine from January 1, 2019 to December
1, 2019

4. Received Tdap Vaccine from January 1, 2019 to December
1, 2019

5. Received Pneumococcal Vaccine from January 1, 2019 to
December 1, 2019

The dates for the COVID-19 vaccinated group span from
the first day of vaccine administration in the US to an arbitrary
date that gave over a three-week window before the data was col-
lected. The three other common vaccination groups were exam-
ined throughout the 2019 year to eliminate the possibility of
COVID-19 vaccination within these three groups. Patients with
any history of tinnitus before each respective vaccination event
were excluded from all groups to more precisely focus on vaccine-
related tinnitus and have findings applicable to the vast majority
of the population without a history of tinnitus. Notably, the vac-
cination event was defined as the first time that the patients met
the criteria within the time window, meaning that the first dose
of the COVID-19 vaccination series was analyzed in the first dose
group. The second dose COVID-19 group underwent exactly two
recorded vaccination procedures. Because patients in the second
dose group were excluded if they had a previous history of tinni-
tus, patients experiencing diagnosed tinnitus after the first dose
were excluded from this population. New-onset tinnitus was
defined as an encounter with a diagnosis of tinnitus in patients
with no prior history of tinnitus.

Each patient group was indexed to the event of receiving
the respective vaccination, and any occurrence of an encounter
diagnosis of tinnitus within 21 days of vaccination was recorded.
The timeline of 21 days was arbitrarily decided based on the
symptomatology described in existing case reports and reviews
that suggested acute to subacute onset within hours to days of
vaccination.'™® Because 21 days is the earliest recommended
time frame to receive a second dose of the COVID-19 vaccine
after receiving the first dose, this timeline also served to exclude
tinnitus caused by the second dose while examining the first dose
group. The three common vaccinations were selected arbitrarily
based on the most common vaccinations administered in the US
in an effort to provide applicable comparison groups to the
COVID-19 vaccine.

After the total number of diagnosed tinnitus cases were
recorded for each of the five vaccination groups, four separate 1:1
propensity score matching procedures were performed using Tri-
NetX’s built-in logistic regression model. Full data sets and
results of each propensity score matching procedure are provided
in the Data S1, including standardized mean differences for each
ICD-10 variable before and after matching. Matching was per-
formed between the following groups: second dose COVID-19 vac-
cine to first dose COVID-19 vaccine (Table S1); influenza vaccine
to first dose COVID-19 vaccine (Table S2), Tdap vaccine to first
dose COVID-19 vaccine (Table S3); and polysaccharide pneumo-
coccal vaccine to first dose COVID-19 vaccine (Table S4).
Matching was performed for each group relative to the first dose
COVID-19 wvaccine group because our primary outcome was
exploring the risk of new-onset tinnitus after the first dose of the
COVID-19 vaccination as compared to other common vaccina-
tions. Patients were matched between these groups based on age
at vaccination, sex, race, and ethnicity (Supplementary Matching
Criteria).

RESULTS

Out of 2,575,235 patients receiving a first dose of the
mRNA COVID-19 vaccine without any prior tinnitus
diagnosis, 0.038% (95% CI: 0.036%-0.041%) of patients
had a new diagnosis of tinnitus within 21 days. Out of
1,477,890 patients receiving a second dose of the mRNA
COVID-19 vaccine without any prior tinnitus diagnosis,
0.031% (95% CI: 0.029%-0.034%) of patients had a new
diagnosis of tinnitus within 21 days of the second dose.
The numbers and percentages of patients in each vaccina-
tion group with a new diagnosis of tinnitus are shown in
Table I.

After four separate 1:1 propensity score matching
procedures based on age at vaccination, sex, race, and
ethnicity between patients receiving the first dose of the

TABLE I.
Numbers and Percentages of Patients with a New Encounter Diagnoses of Tinnitus within 21 days After Vaccination.

Vaccinated Patients without Any
History of Encounter Diagnoses of

Diagnoses of Tinnitus within 21 Days

Patients with New Encounter
Proportion with a Mew Encounter

Vaccination Received Tinnitus after Vaccination Diagnoses of Tinnitus (%) (95% CI)
First Dose mRNA COVID-19 2,575,235 986 0.038 (0.036-0.041)
Second Dose mRNA COVID-19 1,477,890 485 0.031 (0.029-0.034)
Influenza 1,200,749 745 0.062 (0.058-0.067)
Tetanus and diphtheria (Tdap) 456,306 314 0.069 (0.061-0.077)
Polysaccharide Pneumococcus 153,522 135 0.088 (0.074-0.100)
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TABLE II.

Relative Risks for Post Vaccination New Encounter Diagnoses of
Tinnitus Compared to the First Dose of COVID-19 Vaccine.

Relative Risk for New Encounter
Diagnoses of Tinnitus Compared to
First Dose COVID-19 Vaccination

Vaccination Received (after propensity score matching)

First Dose mRNA COVID-19 1

Second Dose mRMNA COVID-19 0.80 (95% Cl: 0.71-0.91)
Influenza 1.95 (95% Cl: 1.72-2.21)
Tetanus and diphtheria (Tdap) 2.36 (95% Cl: 1.93-2.89)
Polysaccarhide Pneumococcus 1.97 (35% Cl: 1.48-2.64)

COVID-19 vaccine and the four other selected vaccina-
tions, there was a higher risk of a new-onset diagnosed
tinnitus after influenza vaccination, Tdap vaccination,
and pneumococcal vaccination than after the first dose of
the COVID-19 vaccine (Table II). There was a lower risk
of a new diagnosis of tinnitus after the second dose of the
COVID-19 vaccination series than after the first dose
(RR: 0.80, 95% CI: 0.71-0.91). In the comparison for the
influenza group, there were 998,991 influenza vaccine
patients compared to 1,009,935 first dose COVID-19 vac-
cine patients, with 720 cases of a new encounter diagnosis
of tinnitus in the influenza group and 374 cases of a new
encounter diagnosis of tinnitus in the first dose COVID-
19 group (RR: 1.95, 95% CI: 1.72-2.21). In comparison to
the Tdap group, there were 444,708 Tdap wvaccine
patients compared to 444,721 first dose COVID-19 vac-
cine patients, with 314 cases of a new encounter diagnosis
of tinnitus in the Tdap group and 133 cases of a new
encounter diagnosis of tinnitus in the first dose COVID-
19 group (RR: 2.36, 95% CI: 1.93-2.89). In the comparison
for the polysaccharide pneumococcal vaccine group, there
were 153,344 pneumococcal vaccine patients compared to
154,825 patients who received first dose of COVID-19 vac-
cine, with 132 cases of a new encounter diagnosis of tinni-
tus in the pneumococcal group and 79 cases of a new
encounter diagnosis of tinnitus in the first dose of
COVID-19 group (RR: 1.97, 95% CI: 1.48-2.64). In the
comparison for the second dose of COVID-19 group, there
were 1,516,282 patients who received second dose of
COVID-19 vaccine compared to 1,516,282 patients who
received first dose COVID-19 vaccine, with 465 cases of a
new encounter diagnosis of tinnitus in the second dose
COVID-19 group and 577 cases of a new encounter diag-
nosis of tinnitus in the first dose of COVID-19 group (RR:
0.80, 95% CI: 0.71-0.91).

DISCUSSION

In this retrospective cohort study examining over 2.5
million patients receiving a first dose of the mRNA
COVID-19 vaccine, there was a low rate (0.038%, 95% CI:
0.036%—0.041%) of a new encounter diagnosis of tinnitus
within 21 days of vaccination. After matching similar
patients between COVID-19 vaccination groups, the likeli-
hood of having a new encounter diagnosis of tinnitus was

Laryngoscope 00: 2022

lower after the second dose of the COVID-19 vaccine than
after the first dose (RR = 0.80, 95% CI: 0.71-0.91). This
finding may suggest that patients with a predisposition to
vaccine-related tinnitus may be more vulnerable after the
first dose than after the second dose, or that the first dose
provokes an inflammatory response more likely to cause
tinnitus. There was a higher risk of a new encounter diag-
nosis of tinnitus after the influenza vaccine, Tdap vaccine,
and polysaccharide pneumococcal vaccine than after the
first dose of COVID-19 vaccination. It is important to con-
sider that while the risk of a new encounter diagnosis of
tinnitus was higher after these three common vaccinations
than after the first dose of COVID-19 vaccination, the
rates of a new encounter diagnosis of tinnitus for each of
these groups were extremely low (£0.1% in each of these
groups). With such low rates of a new encounter diagnosis
of tinnitus after each vaccination, consideration should be
given to the baseline risk of developing a new encounter
diagnosis of tinnitus independent of any vaccine. However,
the lower risk of a new encounter diagnosis of tinnitus
after the COVID-19 vaccination than the other three com-
mon vaccinations is not obviously explained by a difference
in baseline risk between patient groups. The differences in
tinnitus based on vaccinations may be due to different pat-
terns of inflammation invoked by each vaccine or may be
explained by uncontrolled variables.

In the discussion of post-COVID-19 vaccination tinni-
tus, the risk of a new tinnitus encounter diagnosis following
COVID-19 infection should be considered. COVID-19 infec-
tion, like many other viral infections, has been shown to be
associated with audiological and vestibular pathologies.”'°
A recent meta-analysis of COVID-19 infection symptomatol-
ogy found tinnitus as a statistically significant side effect of
infection."" Multiple case reports'*'* and reviews'™®
describe tinnitus as a direct symptom of COVID-19 infec-
tion, likely secondary to systemic inflammation. Pathophys-
iological explanations posit cochleovestibular inflammation,
the cross-reaction of immune cells to inner ear antigens,
and endothelial dysfunction leading to microvascular dam-
age of the inner ear as explanations for the significant
audiovestibular sequela of COVID-19 infection.** Given the
current body of evidence, tinnitus is more clearly causally
linked to COVID-19 infection than to COVID-19 vaccina-
tion, and the risk of developing tinnitus after the vaccine is
likely lower than after the infection prevented by the
vaccine.

The present findings should not be used to discour-
age the administration of common wvaccinations but
rather serve as an impetus for further exploration into
mRNA vaccine side effects. When provided with evidence
of low incidences of adverse effects of the wvaccine,
patients may be more likely to consider being vacci-
nated.’” The present findings do not speak to the severity
of tinnitus or the long-lasting effects of post-vaccination
tinnitus, but provide important information on how often
patients are diagnosed with tinnitus subacutely after vac-
cination on a large population level. With the advent of
mRNA vaccination in humans occurring on such a wide-
spread scale, the complications of the vaccine should be
researched thoroughly and medical providers should be
up to date on the prevalence of adverse events for patient
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discussion and education. The rate of diagnosed new-
onset tinnitus seen in this investigation provides valuable
clinical information for medical providers talking to
patients with fear of the vaccine or vaccine hesitancy.
The present findings provide evidence for medical pro-
viders to answer patient questions about the risk of tinni-
tus after vaccination.

There are limitations to this population-level study
with such a large EHR data set. Notably, undiagnosed
or uncoded tinnitus is not included and may be better
studied with a smaller cohort and direct researcher
oversight. This study excluded patients with any
encounter diagnosis history of tinnitus in an effort to
focus on vaccine-related tinnitus, which excludes infor-
mation about the reactivation of tinnitus symptoms by
vaccination. Additionally, this study did not separate
the specific formulations of the COVID-19 vaccine. The
timeline of 21 days was arbitrarily decided based on
preliminary research and case reports and could poten-
tially miss late-onset cases of tinnitus if too short or
include unrelated events if too long. The common vacci-
nation groups were studied throughout 2019 as opposed
to the COVID-19 group, which was examined from 2020
to 2022, and widespread hesitation to present to the
hospital during the pandemic could have masked cases
of tinnitus post-COVID-19 vaccination.’® However, it
has been posited that the emotional burden widely
experienced during pandemic lockdowns increased the
perceived loudness of tinnitus'® and may have increased
the perception of otherwise subclinical tinnitus symp-
toms. Hearing outcomes from episodes of tinnitus were
not examined in this study as they are not easily quan-
tifiable from our data set but serve as an important
direction for further research.

CONCLUSION

The rate of newly diagnosed tinnitus within
3 weeks of the first dose of COVID-19 vaccination is
very low. Patients are more likely to develop a new
encounter diagnosis of tinnitus after the three other
common vaccinations for influenza, Tdap, and pneumo-
coccus than after the first dose of the COVID-19 vac-
cine. The results of this study will be wvaluable to
medical providers providing patient education about the
COVID-19 vaccine, addressing vaccine hesitancy in the

Laryngoscope 00: 2022
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ongoing pandemic, and researching the side effect profile
of mRNA vaccinations.
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From: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)

Sent: Wed, 31 Aug 2022 12:09:13 +0000

To: Sharan, Martha (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)

Subject: FW: National Geographic interview request - AEs from COVID vaccines
Attachments: RE: Tinnitus

| (b)(6) |'ll call you about this when | get back. My understanding is that this activity has

(b)(5) | so it’s a bit tricky.

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

Tara Haelle » @tarahaelle

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

Sent: Tue, 30 Aug 2022 14:24:30 +0000
To: stinc021 University of Minnesota
Cc: Vaccine Safety (CDC)

Subject: RE: Tinnitus

Hi Patsy — See my responses below.
Elaine — Can you look at #1 and see if you can provide a current report count. Thanks.

Tom

From: stinc021 University of Minnesota <stincO21@umn.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, August 30, 2022 8:45 AM

To: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>
Subject: Re: Tinnitus

Thanks so much Tom for your quick response. You've outlined the issues as | understand them as well.

Some questions:
1. What is the latest number of VAERS reports, last | read was 15,0007 (Again, relatively small

considering the denominator)| (b)(5)

(b)(5)

2. VSafe has an open comment if | remember correctly if you choose you are not doing well. Are people
writing in there? Can we add “ear ringing” to the list of symptoms which could at least give us time

frames of onset yet causality would still need to be weeded out?| (b)(5)

(b)(5)

3. To temporal vs causal, can CDC set up a study with a control group like vaccinated and unvaccinated
with tinnitus visits to ENT in a large enough scale to be meaningful? We would have to have fairly

(b)(5)

4. There are over 1000 people in this support group who have an IRB approved survey of questions but
cannot find funding for a study which is increasing their frustration. Does CDC have ability to fund such
a survey? Do you know of any researcher who would be interested in taking this on? Similar to #3,

(b)(5)




(b)(5)

Maybe consider adding a comment about tinnitus in an upcoming safety report to ACIP so these folks
with compelling stories feel heard.

Thanks Tom.
Best regards,
Patsy

On Tue, Aug 30, 2022 at 07:01 Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov> wrote:
Hi Patsy,

Good to hear from you and | hope you are doing well. We have been receiving reports of tinnitus
following COVID-19 vaccination since early in the pandemic and we are aware that there is public
concern regarding tinnitus as a potential adverse event. As you point out, the situation is complicated by
the fact that tinnitus is so common. By some estimates, up to a quarter of all people will experience
tinnitus at some point in their lives. The clinical presentation is varied as are the causes, and in many
cases no cause is found. With three-quarters of the U.S. adult population having received at least one
COVID-19 vaccination, we anticipate a substantial number of temporally associated tinnitus cases
following vaccination, with the possibility of many cases occurring within days or weeks of vaccination
by chance alone. The number of reports to VAERS are relatively small given the number of doses
administered, but for a common condition like tinnitus in the context of massive amounts of
vaccination, VAERS data may not be that helpful.

We have looked in the Vaccine Safety Datalink for clustering of tinnitus diagnoses in a post-vaccination
observation period and have not observed any pattern of clustering that would indicate an association.
The bottom line is that there is a lack of evidence to support a link between COVID-19 vaccination and
tinnitus. | always try to market v-safe when | get a chance, but v-safe is probably not the best system to
evaluate tinnitus. There is no pre-specified sign or symptom question for hearing conditions. | hope this
helps.

Regards,
Tom

Tom Shimabukuro, MD, MPH, MBA

Captain, U.S. Public Health Service

Director

Immunization Safety Office

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
1600 Clifton Road, MS V18-4, Atlanta, GA 30329

Phone: 404-498-0679, Fax: 404-498-0666
Email: TShimabukuro@cdc.gov




From: stinc021 University of Minnesota <stinc021@umn.edu>
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2022 11:43 PM

To: Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP) <ayv6@cdc.gov>
Subject: Tinnitus

Hi Tom;

Hope all is well with you.

There is some chatter on Twitter about tinnitus after COVID vaccine and they reached out to a couple of
us ACIP members for help.

The primary concern is about the lack of understanding of incidence, causation and treatment and
awareness of tinnitus after COVID vaccine. There is also some underlying sentiment that ACIP doesn’t
care about less common and perhaps less severe AE’s like tinnitus. | noted we do care. The challenge is
because the background rate is ~ 10%

Journalist Tara Haelle is doing a story on this for Nat Geo as you may know and wants to talk to me
Tuesday afternoon. If you have anything on post COVID vaccine tinnitus that you can share with me that
would be great. | am emphasizing, among other things, that enrollment in VSafe is so important to help
us better understand situations like this.

Thanks. “Talk” to you Thursday and Friday of this week. Feel free to call me if that’s easier.
Patsy Stinchfield, MS, CPNP

ACIP Liaison Rep

Celll (b)(6) |

Patricia (Patsy) Stinchfield, RN, MS, CPNP-PC

~Children's Minnesota. Retired Pediatric Nurse Practitioner & Sr. Director, Infectious Disease,
Current Honorary Professional Staff

~National Foundation for Infectious Diseases. President

~University of Minnesota, School of Nursing, Affiliate Faculty

~Liaison for National Association of Pediatric Nurse Practitioners (NAPNAP) to CDC's Advisory
Committee on Immunization (ACIP)

Stinco2i@umn.edu

cell| (b)(6) |

@ InfectiousPs

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

Stinco21@umn.edu

cell] (b)(6) |

@ InfectiousPs




From: Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (CDC)

Sent: Mon, 13 Feb 2023 19:04:04 +0000

To: NIPINFO (CDC); Shimabukuro, Tom (CDC/DDID/NCEZID/DHQP)

Subject: FW: RFI Pfizer Protocol - DHA OIG INTAKE BRANCH

Attachments: DD Form 2949, JOINT INSPECTOR GENERAL ACTION REQUEST - dd2949.pdf
Hi,

Sharing with you in case you need to see it.

Stephanie Thomas
ACIP

From| (b)(6) |
Sent: Monday, February 13, 2023 12:21 PM

To: Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (CDC) <acip@cdc.gov>
Subject: Fwd: RFI Pfizer Protocol - DHA OIG INTAKE BRANCH

Hello,

My phone number is: | have suffered from a “functional neurological disorder”, optical
injuries including glaucoma and binocular dysfunction, tinnitus, 24/7 “migraine” and multiple other
malfunctions since getting the Pfizer covid vaccine on December 2020/January 2021. | lost my memory
for nearly 2 years. | am just waking up to what hell | have been through and | want to know what/why
the Defense Health Agency doesn’t seem to have any protocols for the treatment of adverse reactions
to the Covid vaccines.

| have zero complaints about my doctors; they have done everything they knew to do and followed the
protocols they had available; unfortunately, | now know those protocols don’t include anything to do
with the initial cause of my condition.

| don’t know who, what, where, when, why and how because if | didn’t write it it down or take a photo |
have lost the knowledge and information.

I’'m disgusted. As a federal employee there were at least 1600 other employees who also worked for the
Army who filed workers compensation claims. We were citizens who had public trust investigations and
security clearances. We were trusted and we should have had the option after being forced to take the
vaccine that ruined our lives to be studied by researchers. Yet we were apparently ignored. We filled out
the vsafe information. | had no idea what was happening to me. It took 14 months to start finding the
problems and 2 years to actually get solutions to where | can remember more than 5 minutes.

This is disgusting and it has been done to us. | see nothing about monitoring children in their
development for memory loss. | know what hell that is. If there are children going through what | went
through they are not going to learn how to speak. They are not going to be functional and they have
parents who are not going to be believed.

| lost my words. | stuttered trying to speak; | couldn’t find my words at times to speak simple sentences.
If I as an adult could not; how is a child supposed to?

We need help and denying that we exist is sickening. Denying a treatment protocol is even worse. As a
DoD beneficiary my doctors can only order the test you and the fda have listed in your published
protocols. The lack of a protocol has led to a delay in my treatment which is a TORT lawsuit. Given that |
have lost my career and | am bankrupt | can’t afford a lawyer to sue. So how about being decent himself
beings and start with a list of tests and treatment plans?



From:| (b)(6)
Date: Tue, Jan 31, 2023 at 13:34
Subject: Re: DHA OIG INTAKE BRANCH

L (b)(6)

Sorry about that. | printed it as a pdf this time.

On Tue, Jan 31, 2023 at 1:30 PM Coleman, David CIV DHA OFC IG (USA)
<david.coleman48.civ@health.mil> wrote:

Helld (b)(6)

We have received your DD 2949 to begin inquiry into your reported concern. It was not dated nor
signed. Would you be so kind, if possible, to sign your document and send it back to us.

Thank you.
vr/dc

David Coleman

Intake Case Manager, Hotline Branch
Office of the Inspector General

Defense Health Agency

5109 Leesburg Pike, Suite 817

Falls Church, VA 22041

DHHQ - 1M211

Cell: (571) 635-5425

Email: david.coleman48.civ@health.mil
DHA HOTLINE: 703.681.9700

DHA HOTLINE: dha.ncr.dir-support.mbx.ig-hotline@health.mil

***WARNING FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY/LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE***

This e-mail and attachment(s) are the property of the Department of Defense, Defense Health Agency
Office of the Inspector General (DHA OIG). Distribution outside DoD and the intended receiving agency
without prior authorization of DHA OIG/DoD OIG is not authorized. Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (PIl), or Law Enforcement Sensitive (LES) information may be
included. Law enforcement sensitive information may be withheld from the pubilic, as disclosure could
cause foreseeable harm to the interest protected by one or more exceptions of the Freedom of
Information Act, 5 USC Section 552.

The OIG mission is to conduct, supervise, monitor, and initiate inspections, execute Hotline program,
provide assistance and conduct investigations relating to programs and operations of the DHA OIG
mission supports and aligns to (M1 and M4).



This e-mail contains unclassified information that may be withheld from the public because disclosure
would cause forseeable harm to an interest protected by one or more of the Freedom of Information
Act (FOIA) Exemptions

2 through 9 identified in 5 USC 552 (b). Information contained within this document and/or
attachment(s) is privileged and/or sensitive information that is intended solely for individuals having an
official "need-to-know basis" and should not be forwarded. Any misuse or unauthorized disclosure may
result in both criminal and civil penalties.

WHISTLE BLOWER PROTECTION ACT: No person will restrict a member of the Federal Government or of
the Armed Services from making a protected communication with the Inspector General (IG), all
communications with an IG are protected. No person may, in reprisal:

take or threaten to take adverse action, withhold or threaten to withhold favorable action.



Prescribed by: DoDI 5106.04, DoDI 5106.05 CONTROLLED when filled

JOINT INSPECTOR GENERAL ACTION REQUEST
Personal and Fraud, Waste and Abuse Complaint Registration

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
AUTHORITY: Title 10 U.S.C. 141; DoDD 5106.04; DoDI 5106.05.

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE(S): To secure sufficient information to inquire into the matters presented and to provide a response to the requestor(s) and/or
take action to correct deficiencies.

ROUTINE USE(S): Information is used for official purposes within the Department of Defense; to answer complainants or respond to requests for
assistance, advice, or information; by members of Congress and other Government agencies when determined by The Inspector General to be in the
best interest of the Department of Defense; and, in certain cases, in trial by courts-martial and other military matters as authorized by the Uniform
Code of Military Justice. Department of Defense "Blanket Routine Uses" also apply.

DISCLOSURE: Disclosure of personal information is voluntary; however, failure to provide complete information may hinder proper identification of
the requestor, accomplishment of the requested action(s), and response to the requestor.

WARNING: Those who knowingly and intentionally provide false statements in this complaint are subject to potential punitive and administrative
actions (UCMJ Art. 107; 18 U.S.C. 1001).

|1. NAME (L ast, First, Middle Initial) 2. GRADE/RANK 3. SSN (Optional)
| (b)(6) | GS11-04 Medically Retired (b)(6)
4. STATUS (X as applicable) 5. UNIT IDENTIFICATION CODE (UIC)/ORGANIZATION ADDRESS

D MILITARY

I:] Air Force ]:] Army D Mawy D Marine Corps

D Coast Guard (b)(6)

Previously

|:| Active l:| Reserve l:| MNational Guard l:| Other:

CIVILIAN 6. PREFERRED MAILING ADDRESS (If different from above)

D Appropriated Fund D Nonappropriated Fund

Foreign or Local -
I:] Contractor D National Other:

Spouse and Retired DoD (

(b)(6)

7. CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER(S) (Include area code/DSN) 8. E-MAIL ADDRESS(ES)

a. DUTY b. HOME c. CE (b)(6)
(b)(6)

9. SPECIFIC ACTION REQUESTED (What do you want the IG to do for you?)

Investigate Covid Vaccination Adverse Reaction issues. Establish standardized guidelines, a research program and protocols for testing

individuals who report ongoing adverse reactions post vaccination.

10. INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THIS REQUEST (Background, list attached documents, who else (commander, agency) you have talked with
about this matter, etc.)

I lost my memory for most of 2021/2022. From my records I contacted patient advocacy and utilized the open door policy at

On January 8 2022 an MRI was ordered with contrast in the Emergency Room for a stroke protocol. The MRI was halted prior to the contrast. I do not have
a complaint about that. The problem stems from the fact the computer stated 1 had an MRI with contrast and every time my PCM (Primary care manager)
attempted to order an MRI with contrast someone at Madigan cancelled the request. | want to know who continued to cancel the requests and why they felt it
was necessary to over rule my doctor's wishes.

I subsequently ordered and paid out of pocket for my own MRI in December of 2022 and ordered neuro optometrist review who prescribed prism glasses
which has greatly improved my quality of life. I believe the delay in obtaining the MRI caused further damage.

1. Politicization of the covid vaccine created problems for individuals seeking treatment for adverse reactions. Despite having a Top Secret Security
Clearance when I reported to my PCM in April of 2021 that T had an adverse reaction that was not going away it was not reported or recorded as such, When |
requested from my PCM if the adverse reaction was going to be reported to VAERS in June of 2021; the request was denied and I self reported to VAERS.

I continued to decline in health.

2. There are / were no standards of testing for vaccine adverse events for individuals with cases that resemble long term covid. Multiple attempts by my
doctors to refer me to subject matter experts at thel (b)(6) |were refused as | had never had covid despite showing the classic symptoms of
the disease. I am not anti vaccine. I was ordered to get the vaccine in December of 2020 and I did. I unfortunately got sick on 6 January 2021 and have

11. STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING
| do D | do not consent to release my personal information inside official channels in order to resolve the matter(s) listed above.
| understand that if | do not agree to release my personal information, my request for assistance may go unresolved.

a. DATE (YYYYMMDD) b. SIGNATURE 12. IGICASE NUMBER (Assigned by Joint IG)

20220131
(b)(e)

DD FORM 2949, SEP 2 I

Reset




From: Bulletin Intelligence

Sent: 13 Feb 2023 07:35:47 -0500

To: HHS@bulletinintelligence.com

Subject: HHS News Briefing for Monday, February 13, 2023
Attachments: HHSNewsBriefing230213.doc

Click to access mobile-optimized online version, including download options and an audio
reader.

News Briefing Bulleti

a CISION comp

TO: THE SECRETARY AND SENIOR STAFF

DATE: MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023 7:30 AM EST

Today's Table of Contents

Leading the News

e State AGs File Competing Briefs In Lawsuit Challenging FDA Approval Of
Abortion Pill.

The Secretary in the News

e Acting NIAID Director Auchincloss Taking Over Amid Republican Pandemic
Probe.

Coronavirus

Other Coronavirus News

e FDA Commissioner Blasts “"Snake-0Qil Salesmen” Who Seized On Damar Hamlin’s
Collapse.

* New York Allows Mask Mandate For People Inside Healthcare Facilities To

Expire.

e COVID-19 Still Deadly For Older Americans.

e Labor Statistics Show Women Are Returning To Workforce At Higher Rate Than
Men.



e Lack Of Contact With Cold Viruses Could Drive Perception Of More Severe
Symptoms, Experts Say.

e End Of Public Health Emergency Could Mean Uncertainty For COVID-19
Treatments.

¢ Microgrants For Community Organizations Proved Effective At Improving
COVID-19 Vaccination Rates.

e Epidemiologists Discuss Need For More Research On COVID-19's Impact On
Cardiovascular Health.

e CDC Data Show Low Uptake Of Newest COVID-19 Vaccine Booster Correlates
With Low Instances Of Severe Disease In Americans Under 65.

¢ Commentary Criticizes CDC On Masking Recommendations For School Children.
e Former National Security Adviser Calls For Investigation Into COVID-19 Origins.
e HHS Announces Resumption Of Regular Review Policies For Research Projects.
e Jowa Senator Calls For Cessation Of Grants For EcoHealth Alliance.

e Calls For Investigation Into Possible Link Between Tinnitus And COVID-19
Vaccines Mounting.

e COVID-19 Hospital Admissions Hit Two-Month Low In Florida.

e People Claiming Adverse Reactions To COVID-19 Vaccines Struggling To Secure
Payments From Federal Program.

e COVID-19 Cases On The Decline In Oklahoma.

¢ Providers Comment On Impact Of COVID-19 Pandemic On People Struggling
With Eating Disorders.

e Commentaries Point To End Of COVID-19 Pandemic Public Health Emergency As
Threat To Biden Administration’s Student Debt Relief Measure.

e Reuters Finds Claim Moderna Made COVID-19 Vaccines Before Pandemic Began
Are False.

e AP: Report That Fauci Wrote COVID-19 Vaccines Don't Work Is False.

e Georgia High School Form On Cardiac Arrest Is Not Related To COVID-19
Vaccinations.

e Claim That CDC Official Admitted COVID-19 Vaccines Cause "Debilitating
Ilinesses” Is False.

HHS in the News

e FDA Gives Green Light To Limited Health Claims For Some Products Made With
Cocoa Powder.

» Coalition Calls For FDA To Rescind Final Guidance On Clinical Decision Support.



e FDA Working On Initiatives To Speed Development Of Medical Countermeasures
To Disease Outbreaks.

e Opinion: FDA’s Proposed Changes To Blood Donation Rules Will Likely Reduce
Stigma For Gay Men.

e CMS Administrator: Medicare Spending Is Something "We Always Have To Look
At.”

e Opinion: Market-Based Reforms Are Needed To Prevent Collapse Of Medicare,
Medicaid.

e NIH Leaders Discuss Medical Wrongs Against Black Community.

e WHO Report Says Eight Nations Eliminated A Neglected Tropical Disease in
2020.

e NCI Increases RO1 Payline To 12th Percentile For 2023.

e US Surgeon General Admits 13 Years Old Is “Too Early” To Be Using Social
Media.

e HHS Appoints New Director For Office Of Research Integrity.

e CDC Maintains Super Bowl Ad Spot Since 2019.

Overdose Prevention

e VVeterinary Tranquilizer Xylazine Worsening US Fentanyl Crisis.

e Harm Reduction Strategies Remain Vastly Underfunded.

e Bipartisan Panel Of Governors Agrees On Ideas To Address Addiction, Fentanyl
Crisis.

e Overdose Deaths In NYC Rose From Less Than 1,500 In 2019 To 2,670 In 2021,
Data Show.

e Data Show Vast Majority Of People Sentenced For Fentanyl Trafficking Are US
Citizens.

e HEALing Communities Study Teams Up With University Of Kentucky To
Implement Narcan Kits Across Campus.

e Meth Contamination At Several Colorado Libraries Shines Light On "Silent
Epidemic.”

¢ Suicides Continue In New York Prisons, Jails Likely Due To Drug Withdrawal.

e Court Documents Following Student Fentanyl Overdoses Reveal Supplier Lived
Blocks Away From Schools.

e New Colorado Legislation Could Allow Supervised Drug Use Sites To Open.

e Gabapentin Finding Its Way Into Maine’s Illicit Drug Market.

* Target Dates Set For Ohio Opioid Settlement Distribution.



e University Of Arkansas Develops Smartphone App To Decrease Opioid Cravings,
Optimize Medication-Assisted Treatment.

e Opinion: Low-Cost Solution To Reduce Overdose Deaths Is To Tell Physicians
when Patients Die.

e Opinion: Public Health Message That “"One Pill Can Kill” Needs To Be Spread To
Youth.

e Opinion: Compassion, Empathy Should Be At Heart Of Opioid Strike Force.

Mental lliness

e 988 Suicide And Crisis Lifeline Contact, Answer Rates Risen Dramatically Since
Launch.

e After Two Year Decline, Suicide Rates Increased Among Younger Americans,
People Of Color, CDC Finds.

e Analysis: Biden’s Initiatives To Address Youth Mental Health “Promising” If
Quick Action Is Taken.

e Study Emphasizes Need For Pediatric Outpatient Mental Health Follow-Up Care.
e Undergraduate Peer Counselors Help Address Increased Number Of Students
Seeking Mental Health Counseling.

e New Schizophrenia Drug Xanomeline-Trospium Showing Promise Of Fewer Side
Effects.

e Commentary: Using Ketamine To Treat Depression Does Not Help Everyone.

Healthcare Fraud
e Centene Agrees To Pay Medi-Cal $215M To Settle Overcharging Allegations.

Prescription Drug Pricing

e Generic Drugmakers Likely To Benefit From IRA Drug Pricing Laws.

e Opinion: Senator Hawley’s Proposed Insulin Cap Legislation Will Make Quality
Healthcare Unaffordable.

Health Care & Insurance Reform

» Maryland Officials, Advocates Touting Program Which Allows Residents To Enroll
In Healthcare Coverage Through Tax Returns.

e Kaiser Permanente Reports Loss Of $4.47B In 2022 Amid Rising Costs.

e Despite Another Year With Net Loss, Oscar Health Optimistic For Growth In
2023.

e Providers Preparing To Use Misoprostol Alone If Lawsuit Over FDA Approval Of
Mifepristone Proves Successful.



e Abortions Occurring Later Due To Increased Demand From Out-Of-State
Patients.

e Maryland Governor, Dems Unveil Measures Which Seek To Expand Protections
For Reproductive Rights.

e GOP Legislators Attempting To Bypass DAs Who Refuse To Prosecute Violations
Of Abortion Bans.

e Abortion Rights Groups, Dems In Colorado Working On Legislation To Regulate
Crisis Pregnancy Centers.

* Oklahoma Senate Panel Advances Measures Which Outline Legal Abortion.

e Lawsuit Alleges Security Guards At National Archives Ordered Anti-Abortion
Advocates Not To Display Pro-Life Slogans.

e Almost 70% Of Americans Dissatisfied With Abortion Policies, Poll Finds.

e Company Has Been Trying For Years To Expand US Women’s Access To Birth
Control Pills.

e Columnist Criticizes Judge Presiding Over Lawsuit Challenging FDA Approval Of
Abortion Drug.

Health Information Technology
e Editorial Commends FTC For Fining GoodRx Over HIPAA Breach.

Human Services News

¢ Biden Administration Credits New Migration Programs For Drop In Border
Crossings.

e Migrants Looking For US Sponsors Encounter "Underground Market.”

e Judge Delays Order Setting Schedule Determining When North Carolina Health
Officials Must Provide More Accommodations For People With Disabilities.

e Child Care In Philadelphia Costs 22.5% The Median Household Income Per
Child.

e Brett Favre Files To Have Welfare Fraud Lawsuit Dismissed.

» Kristof: New Strategies Needed To Teach Children How To Read.

e Opinion: Tax Benefit Parents Use To Offset Child Care Is "Hopelessly Outdated.”
e Editorial: Hochul Should Appoint Wheelchair User To MTA Board Vacancy.

e Jeffries Claims “Extreme MAGA” Republicans View Social Security As A “Ponzi
Scheme.”

Food & Import Safety

e Consumer Reports Says Bindle Brand Water Bottles Pose Potential Risk Of Lead
Poisoning.



e Purina Recalls Certain Units Of Dog Food After Two Dogs Exhibit Signs Of
Vitamin D Toxicity.

Medicare

e CMS Announces Medicare Rebate Program Under Inflation Reduction Act.

e Republican Senator Warns Medicare, Social Security In Danger Unless Congress
Acts Now.

e Biden Has Yet To Be Specific About How He Would Strengthen Social Security
And Medicare.

e Biden Aims To Brand Republicans As Extreme On Social Security, Medicare.

* McConnell Piles On To Biden’s Criticism Of Rick Scott’s Plan To Sunset Medicare,
Social Security.

e Advocacy Groups Say CMS’ Lack Of Insurance Coverage For New Alzheimer’s
Drug Is Discriminatory.

e Column: Republicans "Haven't Earned A Whole Lot Of Trust” On Social Security,
Medicare.

e Letter: Seniors Can't Afford Benefit Cuts, But Wealthy Can Afford To Pay More.

Medicaid & CHIP

e Biden Administration Begins Approving Medicaid Funds To Be Spent On Food
Programs.

¢ Medicaid Could Be Next Target For Republican Cuts.

e Many States Not Prepared For End Of Automatic Medicaid Enrollment.

e "Influential Group Of Conservative Intellectuals” Back Family Benefits.

Health & Medical News

e Some Scientists Say Biden’s Cancer Moonshot Most Likely To Help Already Rich
Industry.

* Biden Places Cancer Research At Top Of Unity Agenda.

e Data Indicate So Far This Year, State Legislators Have Introduced 80 Bills
Seeking To Limit Access To Gender-Affirming Care.

e Florida Physicians’ Board Expands Ban On Gender-Affirming Care.

e Missouri AG Says Provider Should Halt Treatments For Transgender Youth
Following Complaint About Alleged Misconduct.

e Nebraska Legislators Mulling Bill That Would Allow Medical Providers To Cite
Religious, Ethical Beliefs In Denying Certain Treatments.

e Utah Governor Defends New Law Which Bans Gender-Affirming Care For Minors.



e Chicago-Area Children Staying Longer In Hospitals Due To Shortage Of In-Home
Pediatric Nurses.

¢ Shkreli Urges Judge To Not Hold Him In Civil Contempt For Failure To Provide
Information.

* Novartis Expanding Production, Facilities Of Cancer Treatment Radioligand
Therapy.

¢ RedHill Biopharma Exchanges Rights For Top Commercial Drug Movantik To
Cancel Debt With HealthCare Royalty Partners.

e Cleveland Clinic Partners With Anixa Biosciences For Triple-Negative Breast
Cancer Vaccine Phase 1b Study.

¢ Spruce Biosciences Raises $53.6M PIPE Deal To Fund Clinical Trials For CAH
Drug.

e FDA Recalls Alfia Weight Loss Capsules For Containing A Harmful Drug.

e Sanders To Summon Corporate Executives To Testify Before Congress As
Senate Health Committee Chairman.

* FDA Places Partial Hold On Blueprint Medicines Cancer Drug Trial.

e Study Finds Minnesotans Experiencing Homelessness Have Three-Times Higher
Death Rate.

¢ Scientists Frustrated With Chinese Biophysicist’s Refusal To Discuss Research
On Heritable Genome-Editing Technology.

¢ Analysis Identifies Highly-Cited Cancer-Genetics Papers With DNA, RNA
Sequence Errors.

e Scientists To Publish Entire Genome Of One Human Before End Of 2023.

e Financial Filings Reveal Hospital Oligarchy In Orlando, Florida.

e Transgender Advocacy Group Sues SD Governor, Alleging Contract With State
Government Was Terminated Due To Discrimination.

e Opinion: CVS, Walgreens Ventures Into Primary Care Will Not Fix Broken US
Healthcare System.

e Sanford, Fairview Agree To Delay Merger Until May 31 Amid Pressure
Campaign.

e Kentucky Receives First "Baby Box"” Drop Off.

e Lawsuit Seeks Health Monitoring For Residents Potentially Affected By Toxic
Train Derailment.

e DOT Investigating Neuralink Over Shipping Methods Of "Contaminated” Devices.
e Women Fear Seeking Treatment For Cervical, Breast Cancer In Kenya Because
Of Stigma, Physician Says.



* Highest-Income Black Families At Greater Risk For Maternal, Infant Mortality,
Than White Families, Study Finds.

e Opinion: Higher Education Needs To Retire "Weed-Out” Mentality In STEM
Fields.

e Opinion: Pregnancy Represents Unique Opportunity To Increase Funding For
Women'’s Health.

o Wildfire Smoke Exposure During Pregnancy Tied To Increased Risk Of Preterm
Birth, Study Finds.

e Analysis Identifies Factors That May Explain Differences In Cognitive Ability
Among Older Adults.

e Montana Weighs Proposal Allowing Physician Assistants To Practice
Unsupervised.

e Louisiana Accidentally Legalized Recreational THC.

e Weak Grip Could Indicate Risk Of Early Death, Study Suggests.

e Federal Government Awards Medical Schools Funding To Integrate Behavioral
Health, Primary Care.

e Use Of Telehealth Among Clinicians Treating Patients With OUD Dropped 15%,
Survey Finds.

e Editorial: New Mexico Legislators Need To Take Action To Prevent Physicians
From Fleeing To Other States.

¢ Florida Nursing Homes See Surge In Citations.

e Approximately 383K Illinoisans Struggle With Sports Gambling Addiction,
Department Of Human Services Says.

e Residents Not Convinced It Is Safe To Return Home After Toxic Train
Derailment.

e Exposure To Traffic Noise At Home May Cause Tinnitus, Study Suggests.

¢ Anti-Tobacco Advocates Support New York Governor’s Effort To Ban Flavored
Cigarettes.

¢ Anti-Smoking Advocate Raises Awareness About Risks Of Teen Vaping.

¢ New Mexico Considers Proposals To Make It Harder To Access Vape, Tobacco
Products.

e Connecticut Considers Permitting Cigar Lounges To Sell Liquor.

e City In Tennessee Restricts Smoke, Vape, CBD Shops To Manufacturing
Districts.

e North Dakota Refuses To Raise Cigarette Taxes.

* Youth Vaping Increases As Youth Smoking Decreases.

* Wild Ducks Found Dead In Maine Test Positive For Type Of Bird Flu.



e Suburban Detroit Schools Shuts Down After Norovirus Outbreak Sickens
Students, Staff.

¢ “Canadian Horse Disease” Crippled US Cities 150 Years Ago.

e Number Of Mississippi Babies Being Treated For Congenital Syphilis Spikes By
900%.

e Scientists Monitor Possible Danger To Humans As Bird Flu Makes Leap To
Mammals.

e CDC: Pediatric Flu Deaths Top 100 For First Time Since Beginning Of Pandemic.
* Some Regions Of US Hit Harder By Norovirus Outbreaks.

e Milwaukee County Identifies Chronic Wasting Disease In Wild Deer.

e Michigan School Shut Down After Students, Staff After Suspected Norovirus
Outbreak.

¢ Pittsburgh-Area Physicians Worried About Effect Of Measles Outbreak In
Columbus, Ohio.

e Florida Woman Files Suit Against Maker Of Eyedrops Allegedly Linked To
Infections.

e Research Shows Telehealth Improved Equitable Cancer Care Access, Delivery
Before COVID-19 Pandemic.

e Study Finds Restrictive Calorie Diet May Extend Life Span.

e Billionaire Bill Ackman Announces Foundation Funding For Controversial
Biologist Ousted For Alleged Sexual Misconduct.

e Casino Workers Eagerly Await Hearing On Legislation That Could Prohibit
Smoking In Nine Atlantic City Casinos.

e New York Governor’s Proposed Menthol Ban, Cigarette Tax Receives Mixed
Reactions.

¢ VA Urges Camp Lejeune Veterans To Apply For Disability, Lawsuits Despite
Possible Legal Complications.

e Experts Seek Out Internal, External Cause Behind “"TikTok Tics” Phenomenon.
¢ Opinion: Americans Need To Have More, Pleasurable Sex To Offset Loneliness.

Global Health

e Chinese Health, Family Planning Experts Call For Government Action To Reduce
Financial Burden Of Raising Children.

e Over-Priced Child Care Costs Becoming Top UK Political Issue.

o EMA Begins Review Of Decongestant Medicines With Pseudoephedrine Over
Safety Concerns.

¢ WHO Discussing Ending Mpox Global Public-Health Emergency.



e US, South Korea Warn Of New Ransomware Tactics From North Korea Targeting
Critical Infrastructure.

e Brazil’s Yanomami Health Crisis Drawing People Out Of Isolation.

e More Than 250K Spaniards Protest Healthcare Services In Madrid.

¢ UK Anti-Smoking Organization Calls For Excise Tax On Disposable Vapes.

e UK Regulatory Body Finds Poisons In Some Fake Vapes.

e Equatorial Guinea Places More Than 200 People In Quarantine After Deaths
From Unknown Hemorrhagic Fever.

e Spain Detects Atypical Mad Cow Disease Case, WOAH Says.

e Professor Says “Mass Suicide” Of Japan’s Elderly Comment “Taken Out Of
Context.”

National News

e US Military Shoots Down Unidentified Object Over Lake Huron.

e Comer Defends Oversight Probes As Partisanship Defines Current Congress.

e Whitmer Says Democrats Will Support Biden’s Reelection Bid.

e Sununu Says If He Decides To Run, 2024 Bid Would Focus On Bringing “Better
Attitude” To Politics.

e Cox Says Republicans Should Nominate A Governor For President.

e DeSantis Must Determine When, How Hard To Hit Back At Trump.

e Brazile: Trump May Regret Announcing 2024 Candidacy So Early.

e All In Together CEO: Haley Faces “"High Hurdle” To Securing GOP’s 2024
Nomination.

e California Senate Race Taking Shape While Feinstein Has Not Made Her
Intentions Known.

e Barnes Reelected As Michigan Democratic Party Chair.

e Kansas Republicans Choose Election Conspiracy Promoter To Lead State Party.
e Lake Delivers Election Denial Message During Visit To Iowa.

e Black Voters In Wisconsin Not Surprised By Revelations Of GOP Election Tactics.
e Kansas City Chiefs Defeat Philadelphia Eagles In Close Super Bowl.

¢ Celia Cruz To Be First Afro-Latina Depicted On US Quarter.

e Jackson Appoints New Public Works Director Amid Ongoing Water Crisis.

e Advocates Call For Republicans To Become “Aspirational Conservatives.”

e Joint Center Board Chair Laments Insufficient Diversity Among Senate Staff
Leadership.

Editorial Wrap-Up

¢ Wall Street Journal.



* Washington Post.
e New York Times.

The Big Picture
e Headlines From Today’s Front Pages.

Last Laughs
e Late Night Political Humor.

Leading the News

State AGs File Competing Briefs In Lawsuit Challenging FDA Approval Of
Abortion Pill.

The Washington Post (2/11, Kaur, 10.52M) reported GOP “and Democratic
attorneys general filed competing arguments on Friday in a heated Texas lawsuit
that seeks to reverse the Food and Drug Administration’s approval of abortion
pills, the most common method to terminate pregnancy in the United States.” In
an amicus brief, 22 Republican AGs contended that “the FDA ‘undermined the
public interest’ by allowing the medication.” For their part, 22 Democratic AGs
argued “in court filings that revoking the drug’s approval would have ‘devastating
consequences’ for Americans. The clashing briefs are the latest in rising tensions
around the case, which could undo the FDA’s decades-old approval of
mifepristone, the drug used in medication abortions.”

Reuters (2/10, Pierson) reported the plaintiffs, “anti-abortion groups
including the Alliance for Hippocratic Medicine, claim the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration used an improper process to approve the drug mifepristone in
2000, and did not adequately consider its safety.” By filing the lawsuit in Amarillo,
Texas, the plaintiffs “ensured that the case would go before U.S. District Judge
Matthew Kacsmaryk, a reliable conservative and former Christian activist.”

The AP (2/10, Whitehurst) reported the lawsuit poses “a threat to the
nationwide availability of medication abortion, which now accounts for the
majority of abortions in the U.S.” Should Kacsmaryk, who was appointed by
former President Trump, rule in favor of the plaintiffs, this “could halt the supply
of the drug mifepristone in all states, both where abortion is banned and where it
remains legal.” Mini Timmaraju, president of NARAL Pro-Choice America, said, "It

could have an immediate impact on the country. ... In some ways this is a
backdoor ban on abortion.”



CNBC (2/10, Kimball, 7.34M) reported that NARAL, “in an analysis published
Friday, said 40 million women would lose access to the abortion pill if the court
overturns the FDA’s approval.” Also on “Friday, 67 Republican members of
Congress filed a brief calling the FDA’s approval of mifepristone ‘unlawful,’
arguing it should be overturned. They claimed that the agency’s actions
subverted Congress’ safeguards for patients.” However, “the FDA has had
regulations in place for years to monitor the safety of mifepristone, which it has
gradually eased as more evidence has come in.”

The Hill (2/11, Weixel, 5.69M) reported physicians “and reproductive rights
advocates are bracing for a decision in” the lawsuit “that, if successful, could end
legal access to abortion pills nationwide.” The “pills have become one of the next
major fronts in the fight over reproductive health care in the wake of the
Supreme Court’s decision overturning Roe v. Wade, and the lawsuit is seen by
both sides as the start of the battle to come.”

Among other news outlets covering the story were NBC News (2/10, Atkins,
4.91M), Forbes (2/10, Durkee, 10.33M), the New York Daily News (2/10,
Assuncao, 2.51M), Axios (2/10, Gonzalez, 1.26M), the Portland (ME) Press Herald
(2/10, Murphy, 174K), the Washington Times (2/12, Richardson, 626K), and
Columbia (SC) State (2/10, Hughes, 330K).

The Secretary in the News

Acting NIAID Director Auchincloss Taking Over Amid Republican Pandemic
Probe.

STAT (2/11, Mershon, 262K) reported that the person who replaced Dr. Anthony
Fauci as acting Director of the National Institute for Allergy and Infectious
Diseases, Dr. Hugh Auchincloss, “a respected transplant surgeon and medical
researcher, served for more than 16 years as Fauci’s low-key right-hand man at
NIAID.” Now Fauci’s position “--and all the political heat that goes with it - went
to Auchincloss” as “the new House Republican majority launches a series of
hearings on Covid-19.” Auchincloss "“is likely to face questions” due to a 2020
email to Fauci, as “some conservatives believe the message indicates that US
health officials might have downplayed the possibility” that COVID-19 was
created in a Chinese laboratory with US funds. NIH acting Director Dr. Lawrence
Tabak, HHS Secretary Xavier Becerra, and CDC Director Dr. Rochelle Walensky
are mentioned.



Coronavirus

Other Coronavirus News

FDA Commissioner Blasts “Snake-0il Salesmen” Who Seized On Damar
Hamlin’s Collapse.

Bloomberg (2/12, Rutherford, 3.57M) reports behind a paywall, “When Buffalo
Bills safety Damar Hamlin collapsed during a National Football League game in
January, dozens of Twitter trolls quickly blamed it on Covid-19 shots.” FDA
Commissioner Robert Califf “said in an interview: ‘Snake-oil salesmen’ seized on
the event.”” The “#diedsuddenly hashtag, which appeared in tweets about the
incident, is often used to discredit vaccines by linking them to deaths and injuries
without evidence.”

New York Allows Mask Mandate For People Inside Healthcare Facilities To
Expire.

The New York Times (2/10, Fadulu, 20.6M) reported New York has elected not to
renew a requirement for staff and visitors inside healthcare facilities in the state

to wear face masks. The change, which took effect today, “brings the state’s
guidance in line with that of the” CDC as it “lifted the federal mandate requiring
masks in health care facilities in September.” Currently, “new coronavirus cases
in New York have dropped 30 percent in the past 14 days, according to The New
York Times’s Covid-19 tracker.”

The AP (2/10) reported the policy change, announced Thursday, comes as
the state’s acting Health Commissioner Dr. James McDonald said New York is
“moving to a transition” and has access to “safe and effective vaccines,
treatments, and more.” The decision allows “hospitals, nursing homes, treatment
centers and other facilities to enact their own masking rules in accordance with
guidance from the” CDC.

Forbes (2/12, 10.33M) contributor Bruce Y. Lee reports advocacy
organizations in New York like Mandate Masks NY reacted adversely to the state’s
decision to lift the mask mandate for healthcare facilities. A Substack post from
Mandate Masks NY stated the “decision puts all New Yorkers at risk, particularly
people who are at higher risk and the most vulnerable.” Additionally, public health
experts pointed out that "many healthcare settings can be rather crowded,
chaotic, and poorly ventilated” in their arguments for why the decision to let the
requirement expire was flawed. Those experts recommend New Yorkers at high




risk of severe disease “pay close attention to whether your healthcare facility will
be maintaining face mask requirements despite the state’s lifting its mandates.”

Among other outlets providing coverage are the New York Post (2/10,
Campanile, 7.45M) and the Rochester (NY) Democrat & Chronicle (2/10,
Robinson, 410K).

COVID-19 Still Deadly For Older Americans.

The New York Times (2/11, Span, 20.6M) reported on the continued threat that
COVID-19 poses to people in the United States 65 years of age and older. To
date, “about three-quarters of Covid deaths have occurred in people over 65, with
the greatest losses concentrated among those over 75.” Additionally, “hospital
admissions...remain more than five times as high for people over 70 than for
those in their 50s.” Part of the issue, infectious disease experts believe, is that
“only 40.8 percent of seniors have received a bivalent booster” and “some who
have not believe they have strong protection against infection” according to a
CDC survey.

Labor Statistics Show Women Are Returning To Workforce At Higher Rate
Than Men.

The Washington Post (2/12, A1, Bhattarai, Melgar, 10.52M) reports on women
returning to the workforce. "The percentage of working-age women in the labor
force has nearly recovered from pre-pandemic levels” and “when compared to the
pandemic low point in April 2020, women'’s labor force participation rates are up
by 3.4 percentage points.” Both of those statistics are higher than they are for
men of the same ages. It's a marked reversal as “the covid downturn was unique
in that it took an outsize toll on women...in terms of job losses.” Aiding the return
to work among women is “"employers’ increased willingness to offer more remote
alternatives to office work” and rising prices for necessities like groceries.

Lack Of Contact With Cold Viruses Could Drive Perception Of More Severe
Symptoms, Experts Say.

ABC News (2/11, Egan, 2.44M) reported infectious disease experts’ commentary
on why people in the United States could be perceiving their cold symptoms as
more severe than in previous winters. Such “experts say there is currently no
evidence to suggest the viruses that cause cold symptoms are any more severe
than they were pre-COVID” but there are some factors possibly behind the
perception. Among them is that “people may have forgotten how miserable cold



symptoms can feel after a few years without them” due to a lack of socialization
and increased mask-wearing during earlier years of the COVID-19 pandemic.
Also, “people who haven’t had a cold in a while won't have as much immunity to
viruses.” The National Institutes of Health state that “there are over 200 known
viruses that can cause symptoms of the common cold.”

End Of Public Health Emergency Could Mean Uncertainty For COVID-19
Treatments.

Kaiser Health News (2/10, Appleby) reported on potential forthcoming changes to
cost structures for COVID-19 test kits, treatments, and vaccines. As the federal
government’s COVID-19 pandemic public health emergency will end May 11,
“time is running out for free-to-consumer covid vaccines, at-home test kits, and
even some treatments.” For example, “an August blog post” from HHS’
“Administration for Strategic Preparedness and Response noted that government-
purchased supplies of the drug Paxlovid are expected to last through midyear
before the private sector takes over.” At that time, it could become unclear “what
the companies will charge once government supplies run out.” For people on
Medicare, coverage of the drug could “be limited until the treatment goes through
the regular” Food and Drug Administration process.

Microgrants For Community Organizations Proved Effective At Improving
COVID-19 Vaccination Rates.

Kaiser Health News (2/10, Hawryluk) reported on funding for community
organizations to improve healthcare outcomes. In Colorado, "when COVID-19
vaccines became available” the state gave grants “"to community organizations
serving immigrants and minorities.” The grants came with ample latitude to
spend the funds as the organizations saw fit within the scope of improving
vaccination rates among those populations. The approach worked as “over time,
disparities in vaccine rates in and around Denver narrowed.” Now, “the
microgrant approach could well be the future of public health messaging for
diverse populations.” To further determine the efficacy of the approach, Colorado
“has now expanded to include all routine adult vaccinations and is funded through
April.”

Epidemiologists Discuss Need For More Research On COVID-19’s Impact
On Cardiovascular Health.



US News & World Report (2/10, Smith-Schoenwalder, 1.91M) reported on the
impact of the COVID-19 virus on cardiovascular health. The effects of the virus on
the heart are important “to understand as more than 100 million Americans have
had COVID-19" and that figure “continues to grow each day with no signs of
ceasing.” Epidemiologists believe COVID-19 “has both direct and indirect impacts

on cardiovascular health” like “new clotting and inflammation” and the potential
to cause “issues in other parts of the body that can cause heart damage.”
Currently, “research on COVID-19’s effect on the heart is expanding, but
researchers agree that more attention is needed.”

CDC Data Show Low Uptake Of Newest COVID-19 Vaccine Booster
Correlates With Low Instances Of Severe Disease In Americans Under 65.

CNN (2/10, Cohen, 89.21M) reported that data “indicate that even though a small
percentage of people under age 65 have gotten the new Covid-19 booster, people
this age are not becoming severely ill” from the virus. CDC data show that
“nationally, only about 16% of the population has gotten” the latest COVID-19
vaccine booster “and the rates are especially low for people under 65.” At the
same time, CDC data also show “about 12% of all Covid deaths in the US have
been among people younger than 65.” This data could help drive future vaccine
policy as the “Food and Drug Administration has proposed a framework for annual
Covid vaccinations” and CDC vaccine advisers “are scheduled to meet February
24 to discuss the future of the US Covid-19 vaccination program.”

Commentary Criticizes CDC On Masking Recommendations For School

Children.

In an op-ed for the Washington Examiner (2/10, 888K), Zachary Faria wrote
about recent comments from CDC Director Dr. Rochelle Walensky regarding

masking recommendations for school children. Walensky said, “our masking
guidance doesn’t really change with time” and “what it changes with is disease.
So when there’s a lot of disease in the community, we recommend that those
communities and those schools mask. When there’s less disease in the
community, we recommend that those masks can come off.” Faria argues that
“masking did far more damage to children than the virus” as it "was associated
with decreases in communication and the development of socialization skills.”

Former National Security Adviser Calls For Investigation Into COVID-19
Origins.



The Washington Examiner (2/10, Dunleavy, 888K) reported Trump Administration
“national security adviser Matt Pottinger called it ‘inexcusable’ that there still
hasn’t been a full investigation into COVID-19's origins.” In a piece for the Wall
Street Journal, Pottinger and OneSharedWorld founder Jamie Metzl made their
case for a more robust inquiry, criticizing Dr. Anthony Fauci and former National
Institutes of Health Director Dr. Francis Collins for allegedly planning “to push the
public conversation away from the lab-accident hypothesis and toward the
natural-origins explanation.” Pottinger said while “the malfeasance of China’s
rulers is the primary reason the international community doesn’t have access to”
records and data concerning activity at the bat coronavirus lab in Wuhan, “the US
could do far more to get to the bottom of what happened.”

HHS Announces Resumption Of Regular Review Policies For Research
Projects.

Behind a paywall, Bloomberg Law (2/10, Baumann, Subscription Publication, 4K)
reported “research institutions must revert to using the same ethics board when
collaborating on studies once an exception tied to the Covid-19 public health
emergency ends in May” according to an announcement from HHS' Office for
Human Research Protections Friday. The regular policy “implements safeguards
for research volunteers” and ensures “participants are enrolling voluntarily.” HHS
had "“lifted mandate to use same ethics review board during [the] Covid[-19]"
pandemic.

lowa Senator Calls For Cessation Of Grants For EcoHealth Alliance.

The New York Post (2/11, Vincent, 7.45M) reported US Sen. Joni Ernst (R-Iowa)
claims EcoHealth Alliance “continues to receive millions in grants from the US
government to do research on viruses.” Ernst has already “called on Congress to
stop giving out grants to EcoHealth Alliane for ‘dangerous’ new projects” and
lobbied for investigations into their activity regarding a Wuhan laboratory. In
2022, “EcoHealth Alliance received a $653,392 grant from the National Institute
of Allergy and Infectious Diseases” under the leadership of Dr. Anthony Fauci
which represented “the first installment of a five-years award totaling $3.3
million.” Currently, EcoHealth projects include “experiments with bats on the
Nipah virus in Bangladesh as well as research into viruses in Thailand, Singapore
and Malaysia.”




Calls For Investigation Into Possible Link Between Tinnitus And COVID-19
Vaccines Mounting.

National Geographic (2/10, Haelle, 30.3M) reported on evidence which “suggests
that there might be a connection between COVID vaccines and rare cases of
severe tinnitus.” While “the World Health Organization advised investigating
whether there’s a link between multiple COVID vaccines and tinnitus” last year
and “Johnson & Johnson listed it as a possible adverse effect on its US COVID-19
vaccine fact sheet in February 2021,” CDC spokesperson Martha Sharan “said the
agency has determined it does ‘not have sufficient evidence from our surveillance
to justify launching an epidemiologic study.”” Regardless, “the CDC has come
under criticism from Poland and others who have asked it to study the issue” and
“other experts express skepticism that there could be a link between a vaccine
and an adverse event that occurs so quickly.”

COVID-19 Hospital Admissions Hit Two-Month Low In Florida.

The Palm Beach Post (USA) (2/10, Persaud, 223K) reported on a further decline
of COVID-19 hospitalizations and infections in Florida. According to HHS data,
there were “19,000 new infections, the fewest since the week ending Dec. 26" in
Florida last week. Also, Florida hospitals are currently treating 1,978 patients for
symptoms of COVID-19 and this is “the first time since late December” that
number has been under 2,000. Additionally, wastewater testing “shows viral
levels falling in just about every Florida county where sewage is tested.” At the
same time, there were “"341 more deaths recorded this week, more than twice as
high as pre-surge weeks in late October” and November according to the CDC.

People Claiming Adverse Reactions To COVID-19 Vaccines Struggling To
Secure Payments From Federal Program.

The Minneapolis Star Tribune (2/10, Olson, 855K) reported on injury claims filed
by COVID-19 vaccine recipients in Minnesota. So far, “the federal
Countermeasures Injury Compensation Program...has received 11,196 claims
related to COVID, including 8,447 related to vaccines” but “only 543 have been
resolved.” Furthermore, although “19 claims have been declared eligible” for
payments due to substantiated damages, none of those claims have actually been
paid according to Health Resources and Services Administration records. Part of
the problem is that COVID-19 vaccines do not have a federally recognized “list of



vaccine-connected conditions” and without that documentation, claimants must
“prove a connection to their illnesses” on a case-by-case basis.

COVID-19 Cases On The Decline In Oklahoma.

The Tulsa (OK) World (2/11, 241K) reported on a remission of respiratory disease
infections in Oklahoma. According to data from the CDC and state agencies,
“active COVID-19 infections are down nearly 35% in the past month” and “the
three-day average for COVID-related ICU patients is down about 50%"” over the
same period of time. Furthermore, “the seven-day average for new COVID-19
cases reported to state health officials has decreased 36% since the Jan. 12
update.” However, “the vast majority of the state continues to be in the red, or
high, level for COVID-19 community transmission for the week ending Feb. 4.”

Providers Comment On Impact Of COVID-19 Pandemic On People
Struggling With Eating Disorders.

The Baltimore Sun (2/10, Roberts, 629K) reported on the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on people with eating disorders. For such individuals, “the coronavirus
outbreak’s sudden destruction of eating routines and treatment schedules and the
way it amplified stress and isolation were especially devastating.” During the first
three years of the pandemic, “inpatient stays for eating disorders rose
nationwide.” That coincided with “emergency department visits for eating
disorders” doubling among adolescents. Specialists treating the disorders also
shared that they “saw changes in the patient pool” with the people presenting for
treatment skewing younger.

Commentaries Point To End Of COVID-19 Pandemic Public Health
Emergency As Threat To Biden Administration’s Student Debt Relief
Measure.

In an op-ed for the Wall Street Journal (2/10, Subscription Publication, 8.41M),
Gabriel Rubin wrote the decision to end the federal government’s COVID-19
pandemic public health emergency (PHE) could compromise the Biden
Administration’s plan to cancel student debt. After failing to secure Congressional
approval, the Biden Administration exercised expanded powers connected to the
PHE to put the plan into motion.

In a column for USA Today (2/10, 12.7M), Ingrid Jacques wrote that “by
announcing the end to the” PHE, “Biden is admitting that the flimsy justification
for the debt plan is going away.” The issue of student debt cancellation "demands



debate in Congress” and “not makeshift responses that skirt the legislative body.”
Jacques states, “my concern is that the Biden Administration will continue finding
excuses to prolong” the PHE “because the president has relied too heavily on this
power.”

Reuters Finds Claim Moderna Made COVID-19 Vaccines Before Pandemic
Began Are False.

Reuters (2/10, Check) reported in a fact-check article that online claims that
Moderna CEO Stephane Bancel said in a panel discussion at Davos 2023 that the
company “had made 100,000 COVID vaccine doses before the pandemic began”
are false. Instead, Reuters says, Bancel “spoke about how quickly the company
was able to scale up vaccine production at the start of the COVID-19 pandemic.”

AP: Report That Fauci Wrote COVID-19 Vaccines Don’t Work Is False.

The AP (2/10, Marcelo) reported that a claim that Dr. Anthony Fauci wrote “in a
recent science paper...that COVID-19 vaccines don’t work” is false. The AP says
the “article’s authors say their paper acknowledges current vaccines for
respiratory viruses don't prevent all infections, but that they do prevent the most
serious symptoms.” Fauci and a coauthor “said the article makes the case for
exploring new approaches to make respiratory virus vaccines more effective.” The
article “was written by Fauci and two top officials at the National Institute of
Allergy and Infectious Diseases: Jeffery Taubenberger, deputy chief of its
infectious disease lab, and David Morens, a senior advisor to the agency’s
director.”

Georgia High School Form On Cardiac Arrest Is Not Related To COVID-19
Vaccinations.

In a fact-check article, USA Today (2/9, 12.7M) reported that a Facebook post
claiming a form distributed by the Georgia High School Association “that describes
the early warning signs of ‘sudden cardiac arrest’ and explains what should
happen if one occurs” is related to COVID vaccinations is false. The form "“is not
new, Georgia High School Association spokesperson, Steve Figueroa, told USA
TODAY" and dates to 2019.

Claim That CDC Official Admitted COVID-19 Vaccines Cause “Debilitating
llinesses” Is False.



In a fact-check article, the AP (2/10, Tulp) reported that a claim that CDC deputy
director Dr. Tom Shimabukuro “admitted that COVID-19 vaccines are causing
‘debilitating illnesses” is false. The AP says the claim “takes [his] comments at
the January meeting of the Food and Drug Administration’s Vaccines and Related
Biological Products Advisory Committee out of context.” Shimabukuro’s remarks
“came during a wider discussion of vaccine safety monitoring in which
Shimabukuro was describing accounts in the Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting
System, an early warning system kept by the FDA and the CDC to monitor signals
of possible side effects from vaccines.”

HHS in the News

FDA Gives Green Light To Limited Health Claims For Some Products Made
With Cocoa Powder.

NPR (2/12, Aubrey, 3.69M) reports that Barry Callebaut AG Switzerland, which
makes chocolate and cocoa products, in 2018 “petitioned the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration to allow the use of a health claim on labels, pointing to the link
between the consumption of flavanol-rich cocoa and a reduced risk of
cardiovascular disease.” Early this month, “after an exhaustive review of studies,
the FDA has responded.” The agency “gave a green light to use certain, limited
health claims on products made with high-flavanol cocoa powder.” However, it
“says there’s not enough evidence to support claims on regular chocolate, the
kind most of us consume.”

Coalition Calls For FDA To Rescind Final Guidance On Clinical Decision
Support.

Healthcare IT News (2/10, 2K) reported, “The CDS Coalition is asking the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration to pull back on its clinical decision support
guidance in order to ensure that the agency better balances its regulatory
oversight with the healthcare sector’'s need for innovation while comporting with
the statutory language of the 21st Century Cures Act.” Healthcare IT News says
“the coalition’s stakeholders - clinical decision support software developers,
patient advocacy organizations, clinical societies, healthcare providers and
healthcare payers - say FDA's guidance exceeds Congress'’s statutory definitions
of what is considered CDS and threatens to undermine lawmakers’ goals.” The
coalition “said in its February 6 petition prepared by Epstein Becker & Green,
P.C.: 'The Office of the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology




and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services strongly believe that CDS
software will help improve the quality of care, and that innovation must be
encouraged in this space.”

FDA Working On Initiatives To Speed Development Of Medical
Countermeasures To Disease Outbreaks.

BioCentury (2/10, Usdin, Subscription Publication) reported behind a paywall that
the FDA “is working on two initiatives that have the potential to make drug
development and manufacturing more efficient, enhance U.S. competitiveness
and increase supply chain resilience.” BioCentury says “both projects, the
establishment of designation programs for platform technologies and for
advanced manufacturing technologies, were tucked inside the 4,155-page
omnibus spending bill Congress passed in December.” The proposals “were
crafted with input from FDA and were informed by the COVID-19 experience,
especially imperatives to speed the development of medical countermeasures in
the face of infectious disease outbreaks and to reduce reliance on overseas
manufacturing facilities.”

Opinion: FDA’s Proposed Changes To Blood Donation Rules Will Likely
Reduce Stigma For Gay Men.

In an opinion piece for the Los Angeles Times (2/11, 3.37M), physician Eric
Kutscher wrote, "As a sophomore in college in 2011, I was deferred from
donating blood for being a gay man. I was confronting the homophobia built into
the FDA's blood donation ban for men who have sex with men. After imposing
that rule in 1985 and making a few minor revisions since, the FDA is at long last
considering meaningful updates to consider donors based on their sexual behavior
regardless of their orientation.” Kutscher wrote, “"The FDA is clearly trying to
create more inclusive and evidence-backed policies. The proposed changes will
likely reduce stigma for some Americans and possibly reduce the number of
young men who are outed at work and school during blood donation drives. Yet
as a doctor, I'm disappointed by the lack of nuance that still exists in the new
donation rules — and I hope to see further changes.”

CMS Administrator: Medicare Spending Is Something “We Always Have To
Look At.”

NPR (2/10, 3.69M) reported with a transcript of its Morning Edition program in
which the host “speaks with Chiquita Brooks-LaSure, the administrator for the



Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, about the future of both programs.”
During the interview, Brooks-LaSure said Medicare spending is something “that
we always have to look at. Every couple of years, it's important for Congress to
continue to make adjustments.”

Opinion: Market-Based Reforms Are Needed To Prevent Collapse Of
Medicare, Medicaid.

In an opinion piece for the Wall Street Journal (2/12, Subscription Publication,
8.41M), former CMS chief Seema Verma writes that, despite President Biden’s
rhetoric, failure to take action will cause Medicare and Medicaid to collapse.
Verma writes that market-based reforms such as value-based care for providers
are the solution.

NIH Leaders Discuss Medical Wrongs Against Black Community.

The Atlanta Journal-Constitution (2/10, J. Thomas, 1.46M) reported, “"Decades
later, the descendants of Black people harmed by medical research in the past
say they are still dealing with the impact of those transgressions, but hope
discussing what took place can begin a new phase for Black healthcare.” Now,
“health and research leaders from the National Institutes of Health are meeting
today in Tuskegee, Alabama to hold discussions with those descendants.” On
Thursday evening, All of Us Chief Engagement Officer Dr. Karriem Watson said,
“We have to acknowledge that there’s a historical context in which we do this
work. Bringing people together to talk about the importance of diverse
participation in clinical trials is so important, but we have to acknowledge why
some communities don’t participate.”

WHO Report Says Eight Nations Eliminated A Neglected Tropical Disease in
2020.

Nature (2/13, Coleman, 194K) reports, “"Malawi, Vanuatu and Uganda were
among the eight nations that eliminated a neglected tropical disease” (NTD), “last
year, according to a World Health Organization (WHO) report.” This “takes the
number of countries that have done so since the late 1990s to almost 50, with 11
banishing more than one disease.” The WHO report “comes two years after the
agency released a plan to control or eliminate neglected tropical diseases (NTDs)
by 2030.” But, “the pandemic also disrupted elimination progress in many
countries.” US National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases group leader
for leishmaniasis Shaden Kamhawi said, "We really need to think and be




innovative in how we would be prepared if another [pandemic] comes before we
reach our goals,” but she added, “any progress is good progress.”

NCI Increases R01 Payline To 12th Percentile For 2023.

Cancer Letter (2/10, Ong) reported behind a paywall, "NCI is increasing the R0O1
payline to the 12th percentile in fiscal year 2023, up from the 11th percentile in
FY22 - bringing the institute’s payline to a level not seen since 2010.”

US Surgeon General Admits 13 Years Old Is “Too Early” To Be Using Social
Media.

Fox News (2/10, Sudhakar, 23.99M) reported, “U.S. Surgeon General Vivek
Murthy recently warned that age 13 and younger is too early for America’s kids to
be using social media platforms - despite this being the minimum age to join
many of these popular sites, such as Facebook, TikTok, Snapchat and Instagram.’
Murthy said last week about children using social media, "I, personally, based on
the data I've seen, believe that 13 is too early.” He added, “It's a time when it's
really important for us to be thoughtful about what's going into how they think
about their own self-worth and their relationships - and the skewed and often
distorted environment of social media often does a disservice to many of those

r

children.”

HHS Appoints New Director For Office Of Research Integrity.

Bloomberg Law (2/10, Baumann, Subscription Publication, 4K) reported, "The
HHS has appointed” Sheila Garrity as “a new director for its Office of Research
Integrity, filling a post that’s been vacant for more than two and a half years with
George Washington University’s research integrity officer.” Garrity “joins the
Department of Health and Human Services after about three decades leading
research integrity programs in academia.” She “will assume her post as ORI
director the week of March 26. Wanda K. Jones has been the acting director since
June 2021.”

CDC Maintains Super Bowl Ad Spot Since 2019.

Behind a paywall, Bloomberg Law (2/13, Burgott, Subscription Publication, 4K)
reports, “Super Bowl commercials usually focus on commodities like snack food or
technology for keeping up with the Joneses, but the federal government is no
stranger to using the event for public outreach.” And the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention “has spent $75,000 annually in Super Bowl advertising




since fiscal 2019.” Commercials are not a normal part of the government,
“despite an uptick over the last nine full fiscal years in federal marketing
procurement,” including an increase of "68% since fiscal 2014, with notable
bumps from the Defense Department in fiscal 2017 and” the HHS.

Overdose Prevention

Veterinary Tranquilizer Xylazine Worsening US Fentanyl Crisis.

The Wall Street Journal (2/12, Kamp, Wernau, Subscription Publication, 8.41M)
reports that the veterinary tranquilizer xylazine is spreading rapidly within the
illicit drug supply and causing serious wounds for regular users. Xylazine is
typically mixed with fentanyl, and oftentimes, the volatile mixing of drugs means
that drug users do not know what they are taking. According to the DEA, there
were 3,000 xylazine-related deaths in 2021 and the drug is now spreading from
the Northeast to other parts of the US.

Harm Reduction Strategies Remain Vastly Underfunded.

The New York Times (2/10, Weiland, 20.6M) reported “harm reduction” as a
strategy to reduce overdose deaths in America has received more federal support
in recent years, with President Biden even endorsing the strategy during his State
of the Union address this week. Harm reduction, however, “remains underfunded
and partially outlawed in many states,” with organizations and their volunteers
and employees “functioning as brokers between drug users and the resources
they need to manage their consumption.” RTI International researchers “estimate
that there are only around 1,100 full-time workers nationwide” at syringe
exchange organizations, “aided by a cast of around 600 part-time staff members
and roughly 2,000 volunteers.” In contrast, “over 100,000 Americans die each
year from drug overdoses - one every five minutes, the White House estimates.”

Bipartisan Panel Of Governors Agrees On Ideas To Address Addiction,
Fentanyl Crisis.

Politico (2/12, Olander, 6.73M) reports, “A bipartisan panel of governors from
Maryland, New Hampshire, New Mexico and North Dakota said they agreed on
elements of each other’s ideas to address addiction and the fentanyl crisis,
speaking Sunday on CBS’ ‘Face the Nation.” New Mexico Gov. Michelle Lujan
Grisham (D) said, “That is probably going to be the nexus of real bipartisan
work,” to North Dakota Gov. Doug Burgum (R) “after he described treating



addiction as a disease.” The panel of governors “were in Washington, D.C., for
the National Governors Association conference, and dealing with fentanyl was one
area where they clearly found common cause.”

Overdose Deaths In NYC Rose From Less Than 1,500 In 2019 To 2,670 In
2021, Data Show.

The New York Daily News (2/10, Stratman, 2.51M) reported amid the COVID-19
pandemic, overdose deaths in New York City have risen “from just under 1,500
overdose deaths in 2019 to around 2,670 two years later, according to a recent
city report. The pandemic aggravated a problem already on the rise: In 2015,
just 942, or 13.8 of every 100,000 city residents, died of an overdose.” The
article added, “"The Mott-Haven-Hunts Point area in the Bronx has long struggled
with overdose deaths, but in 2021, deaths skyrocketed - by 42.2 per 100,000
residents from the prior year.” Overall, “the neighborhood saw a staggering 119.3
per 100,000 residents die of an overdose in 2021.” By comparison, “18.8 of
100,000 people died of an overdose in the area” in 2015.

Data Show Vast Majority Of People Sentenced For Fentanyl Trafficking Are
US Citizens.

PolitiFact (2/10, Cercone, Ramirez Uribe, 153K) reported, “Deaths from fentanyl
jumped 23% in President Joe Biden'’s first year in office to more than 70,000, but
they’ve been increasing since 2014 and also rose during Donald Trump’s
administration.” Even though “immigration encounters at the southern U.S.
border have spiked under Biden’s watch, experts say most of the fentanyl coming
into the U.S. from Mexico is coming through legal ports of entry.” Data show that
“the vast majority of people sentenced for fentanyl trafficking are U.S. citizens.”

HEALing Communities Study Teams Up With University Of Kentucky To
Implement Narcan Kits Across Campus.

WKYT-TV Lexington, KY (2/11, 50K) reported, “Unfortunately, overdoses are not
foreign to college students,” which “is why the HEALing Communities Study team
at the University of Kentucky implemented naloxone (name brand Narcan) kits
around campus.” The move is an effort to end “overdose deaths in the
Commonwealth of Kentucky. They wanted to make sure that the naloxone kits
were easily accessible.”

WTVQ-TV Lexington, KY (2/10, 11K) also reported.



Meth Contamination At Several Colorado Libraries Shines Light On “Silent
Epidemic.”

Denver 7 (2/11, Richard) reported, “The closure of several Colorado libraries due
to meth contamination has put the spotlight back on the methamphetamine
epidemic, which is sometimes called ‘the silent epidemic.” University of Colorado
Department of Psychiatry addiction psychiatrist and associate professor Dr.
Joseph Sakai said, “People sometimes talk about it as the epidemic that folks
don’t look at.” Sakai “says unlike opioids, which can be treated with several
medications, there is no FDA-approved medication to treat meth addiction.”
Searching for “an alternative, Sakai and a team of researchers at the CU CONA
(Colorado Neuromodulation of Addiction) Lab are putting together a study to see
if Deep Brain Stimulation can help people addicted to meth.” He “says if the
results seem promising, the National Institute on Drug Abuse may provide them
with more grant money to expand the study.”

Suicides Continue In New York Prisons, Jails Likely Due To Drug
Withdrawal.

The Albany (NY) Times Union (2/12, Manno, 315K) reports, "The New York
Commission of Correction concluded investigations on at least 90 inmate suicides
at state prisons and local jails between 2016 and 2021, according to records
provided to the Times Union.” In fact, “"a common thread emerging from the fatal
incidents is a pattern of inadequate mental health services and shoddy
supervision that preceded the deaths.” According to the National Institute on
Drug Abuse, “drug addiction places many prisoners at an especially high risk of
suicide, with 85 percent of the nation’s prison population having an active
substance abuse disorder or a conviction for a crime involving drugs.”
Consequently, the “Food and Drug Administration issued an advisory in 2019 on
the risk of suicide among individuals addicted to opiates whose medication is
abruptly discontinued or decreased.”

Court Documents Following Student Fentanyl Overdoses Reveal Supplier
Lived Blocks Away From Schools.

CNN (2/11, Sun, Norman, 89.21M) reported, “Parents across the Carrollton-
Farmers Branch Independent School District (CFBISD), located in a Dallas, Texas,
suburb, are reeling following a string fentanyl overdoses by nine students who
attend schools in the district.” Court documents show that “law enforcement



officers traced the drugs the students overdosed on to a house within walking
distance from a middle school and a high school.”

New Colorado Legislation Could Allow Supervised Drug Use Sites To Open.

The Denver Post (2/10, Klamann, 660K) reported that a new proposal, which is
being drafted in the Colorado House, “would let local governments decide whether
to allow” supervised drug-use “sites to open in their jurisdiction, said Rep.
Elisabeth Epps, a Denver Democrat and the bill’s primary sponsor.” However, the
bill "wouldn’t set aside any money to fund any facilities, and cities would still have
to provide their own approval, which Epps said is a pro-local control approach.”
Colorado “drug laws also wouldn’t change; any illicit substances brought into a
sanctioned site would have to be acquired elsewhere.”

Gabapentin Finding Its Way Into Maine’s lllicit Drug Market.

The Bangor (ME) Daily News (2/13, Loftus, 178K) reports gabapentin, “a
medication marketed as a nonaddictive nerve-pain reliever and anticonvulsant, is
finding its way into Maine’s illicit drug market.” Recently 1,253 gabapentin pills
were seized in Old Town. It “is part of a growing national trend of the drug being
found in fatal overdoses.” Meanwhile, “prescription rates for gabapentin continue
to climb.” The rise in misuse of the medication “has prompted states across the
country to more heavily regulate the drug and the federal Food and Drug
Administration to issue warnings about the dangers it poses.”

Target Dates Set For Ohio Opioid Settlement Distribution.

The Youngstown (OH) Vindicator (2/13, 135K) reports, “Funding from the
OneOhio National Opioid Settlement could begin to come to local communities
this fall, but policy delays could impede funding until 2024.” Recently, the
OneOhio Region 7 Board “got the chance to meet with the interim executive
director of” the private nonprofit "OneOhio Recovery Foundation, Kathryn
Whittington, who is also an Ashtabula County commissioner.” The foundation has
been “tasked with distributing 55 percent of the money Ohio will receive from the
pharmaceutical industry as a result of its role in the national opioid epidemic.” But
“because this is so new, much of the structure and processes still are being
decided by the 29-member board governing the foundation.”

University Of Arkansas Develops Smartphone App To Decrease Opioid
Cravings, Optimize Medication-Assisted Treatment.



The Little Rock (AR) Daily Record (2/13, Grajeda) reports, “University of Arkansas
for Medical Sciences researchers have developed an award-winning smartphone
app designed to decrease opioid cravings and optimize medication-assisted
treatment for people with opioid use disorder.” The research team is “supported
by a $2.8 million grant from the National Institute on Drug Abuse,” and “is testing
the effectiveness of OptiMAT (Optimizing Medication Assisted Treatment) among
individuals receiving medication-assisted treatment for opioid use disorder at the
UAMS Center for Addiction Services and Treatment.”

Opinion: Low-Cost Solution To Reduce Overdose Deaths Is To Tell
Physicians when Patients Die.

USC Sol Price School of Public Policy Department of Health Policy and
Management Chair Jason Doctor and USC Schaeffer Center Aging and Cognition
Program Co-Director Mireille Jacobson write in The Hill (2/12, 5.69M), “Despite
billions of dollars in settlements from drug companies and distributors, thousands
of patients still die each year from overdoses of prescription opioids.” The current
“systems may no longer be enough to reduce dangerous opioid prescribing.”
However, “authorities have a promising new tool at hand: low-cost letters that
apply different amounts of social persuasion to clinicians to adhere to prescribing
recommendations, including telling them when a patient has died.” The authors
write, “"As health economists, we separately participated in two recent studies
that showed the payoffs from straightforward and inexpensive mailings.” The
studies “show that clinicians can be effectively prodded to participate in, and
search, state databases and to reduce prescribing.”

Opinion: Public Health Message That “One Pill Can Kill” Needs To Be
Spread To Youth.

University of North Texas Health Science Center reagent professor Scott Walters
writes for the Dallas Morning News (2/13, 772K) that more often “we are seeing
overdoses among young people who have no substantial history of drug use and
no idea what kind of drug they are taking.” Over “the last five years, there has
been a spike in overdoses nationally, and especially among young people.
Between 2019 and 2021, fentanyl overdose deaths doubled in the U.S.,
increasing nearly fourfold among children. Statewide, fentanyl was present in
97% of drug overdoses last year.” Walters says, “Fortunately, there are proven
strategies to protect children against poison. First, we need to prioritize public
health messages that ‘One pill can kill.”” Also, "communication campaigns need to




be designed to appeal to teens, much like the successful tobacco campaigns that
dramatically reduced teen cigarette smoking.”

Opinion: Compassion, Empathy Should Be At Heart Of Opioid Strike Force.

Dallas council member for District 7 Adam Bazaldua and Dallas council member
for District 9 Paula Blackmon wrote for the Dallas Morning News (2/13, 772K),
“As the opioid epidemic continues to devastate American communities and
families, Dallas families are not immune to this epidemic.” Last year, “Dallas Fire-
Rescue paramedics administered just shy of 2,000 doses of Narcan, a medication
used to reverse or reduce the effects of opioids, through the end of year 2022.”
And recently, “we learned that three Carrollton-Farmers Branch ISD students died
and six others have been hospitalized in a string of overdoses from fentanyl-laced
pills.” The authors conclude, “If we are to combat this epidemic, we must address
the public health element. Keeping a caring, proactive and pressing approach in
our response will allow for mental and physical health to be prioritized.
Compassion, empathy and understanding, as well as personal experience, are at
the heart of the Opioid Strike Force.”

Mental lliness

988 Suicide And Crisis Lifeline Contact, Answer Rates Risen Dramatically
Since Launch.

ABC News (2/11, Livingston, 2.44M) reported, “In the six months since the
launch of the national, government-backed 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline, contact
and answer rates have risen dramatically, while the average speed to answer has
dropped, according to Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration data.” Suicide and Crisis Lifeline interim executive director April
Naturale told ABC News, “As we expected, there’s been a significant increase in
the use of the 988 Suicide and Crisis Lifeline service since this transition to a
three-digit number. ... And actually, we're really grateful that more people are
contacting the line with this change. That was the whole goal.” According to
SAMHSA, “in December, 87% of calls, 96% of chats and 99% of texts were
answered across the nation...a 91% overall answer rate.”

After Two Year Decline, Suicide Rates Increased Among Younger
Americans, People Of Color, CDC Finds.



The New York Times (2/11, Barry, 20.6M) said, “"A two-year decline in yearly
suicides ended in 2021, as suicide rates rose among younger Americans and
people of color, according to a new report from the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention.” Per the report, “for decades, suicide rates among Black and
Hispanic Americans were comparatively low;” however, “a gradual shift is
underway.” The CDC found that between 2018 and 2021, “the only racial group
that saw a decrease in suicide rates across age cohorts was non-Hispanic white
people.”

CBS News (2/10, Tin, 5.39M) reported, “Preliminary data suggests suicide
rates had not significantly improved overall through the first quarter of 2022,
according to estimates published by the CDC’s National Center for Health
Statistics.”

Analysis: Biden’s Initiatives To Address Youth Mental Health “Promising” If
Quick Action Is Taken.

In an analysis for ABC News (2/12, 2.44M), BeMe Health Chief Medical Officer Dr.
Neha Chaudhary says, “"The Biden-Harris administration’s commitment to youth
mental health is encouraging, and the doors appear to be open for bipartisan
efforts to invest in, protect and promote the well-being of young people
everywhere.” In his State of the Union Address, President Biden highlighted some
initiatives that “"would positively impact the mental health of young people on a
societal level.” Chaudhary discusses the pros, cons, and barriers these initiative
may face. But, she concludes, “Overall, the initiatives are promising - as long as
stated priorities turn quickly into action in response to this crisis.”

Study Emphasizes Need For Pediatric Outpatient Mental Health Follow-Up
Care.

CNN (2/13, Christensen, 89.21M) reports that while emergency department
“staffers may be able to stabilize a child in a mental health care crisis...research
has shown that timely follow-up with a provider is key to their success long-
term.” But “unfortunately, there just doesn’t seem to be enough of it, according
to a new study co-authored by” Ann & Robert H. Lurie Children’s Hospital Dr.
Jennifer Hoffmann. In the study “published Monday in the journal Pediatrics,”
Hoffmann and co-authors “found that less than a third of the children had the
benefit of an outpatient mental health visit within seven days of being discharged
from the ER.” And “a little more than 55% had a follow-up within 30 days.” The
study found, “without a follow-up, more than a quarter of the children had to go



back to the ER for additional mental health care within six months of their initial
visit.”

Undergraduate Peer Counselors Help Address Increased Number Of
Students Seeking Mental Health Counseling.

The Wall Street Journal (2/12, Petersen, Subscription Publication, 8.41M)
reported on the role specially trained undergraduate peer counselors play in
helping address the increased number of college and university students seeking
mental health counseling.

New Schizophrenia Drug Xanomeline-Trospium Showing Promise Of Fewer
Side Effects.

Wired (2/10, Browne, 3.42M) reported that since the first “rush of discoveries”
over schizophrenia “in the middle of the 20th century, the field hasn’t progressed
much.” Current drugs “do achieve a degree of relief for many people...but they
have a poor effect for some patients, zero effect for others, and are notorious for
triggering unwanted and sometimes overwhelming side effects.” But now
“xanomeline-trospium, or KarXT, has a novel way of diminishing dopamine
transmission that’s showing promise at reducing symptoms while also limiting
side effects.”

Commentary: Using Ketamine To Treat Depression Does Not Help
Everyone.

Contributing columnist Steven Petrow writes for the Washington Post (2/12,
10.52M) about his experience with using “ketamine, the anesthetic and
hallucinogenic drug that has found a new market as an antidepressant,” for his
own clinical depression. Petrow writes, “As I read the buoyant reports of ketamine
successes I decided it was time for me to try it — under the supervision of a
professional therapist.” The FDA “approved the use of a nasal-spray form of
ketamine for use in treatment-resistant, unipolar major depression,” and the
psychiatrist “briefed me in detail on all the possible side effects.” But “looking
back I realize I didn't fully appreciate what all that meant.” Petrow concludes that
while “according to reputable studies, ketamine can be life-changing for a
significant majority,” that “leaves 25 percent, like me, who are not so fortunate.”

Healthcare Fraud



Centene Agrees To Pay Medi-Cal $215M To Settle Overcharging Allegations.

HealthPayerIntelligence (2/10, Bailey) reported that Centene “"must pay Medi-Cal,
California’s state Medicaid program, over $215 million to settle allegations that it
two of its managed care plans overcharged the program by reporting inaccurate
prescription drug costs.” According to the settlement, “the costs were incurred by
Centene managed care plans California Health & Wellness and Health Net.” State
Department of Justice Investigators “found that California Health & Wellness and
Health Net reported inflated costs they incurred for prescription drugs provided to
patients between January 2017 and December 2018.”

Prescription Drug Pricing

Generic Drugmakers Likely To Benefit From IRA Drug Pricing Laws.

STAT (2/10, Wilkerson, 262K) reported, “"Generic drugmakers lobbied hard
against Democrats’ Inflation Reduction Act "empowering Medicare to negotiate
prescription drug prices.” But now “industry experts and lobbyists acknowledge
the package is more of a mixed bag for generics makers...not an existential
threat.” And “the law could actually end up encouraging more generic
competition” by incentivizing drugmakers to allow generic competition. Under the
IRA law, “"Medicare can’t negotiate prices for any drug that competes against a
marketed generic medicine.” The “change in tone is yet another indication that
government price controls are not likely to damage the generic and brand drug
industries nearly as much as lobbying groups for those industries claimed during
the debate over the...the Inflation Reduction Act.”

Opinion: Senator Hawley’s Proposed Insulin Cap Legislation Will Make
Quality Healthcare Unaffordable.

Cato Institute senior fellow and general surgeon Jeffrey A. Singer wrote for The
Hill (2/10, 5.69M), “"Not long ago, conservative Republicans opposed
ObamaCare’s mandated benefits regulations” which could drive up insurance
costs. But “alas, the era of limited government Republicans is fading.” Sen. Josh
Hawley (R-MO) “recently sponsored legislation” to cap out-of-pocket “insulin
expenditures at $25 and ban insurance companies from requiring patients to try
less expensive insulin products” first. Hawley’s legislation “would insulate
consumers from the cost of” insulin while driving up insurance costs for both
insurers and consumers. Hawley should “work to streamline FDA regulations,



reform pharmaceutical patent laws, and eliminate the FDA's authority to impose
prescription requirements on drug manufacturers and consumers.” But instead
Hawley “chooses to add more mandates to the ones already making quality
health care increasingly unaffordable and out of reach.”

Health Care & Insurance Reform

Maryland Officials, Advocates Touting Program Which Allows Residents To
Enroll In Healthcare Coverage Through Tax Returns.

The AP (2/11) reported, “Maryland officials and advocates are highlighting a state
program that enables residents to begin signing up for health insurance by
checking a box on their state tax return.” In 2019, “"Maryland became the first
state in the nation to establish a tax-based easy enroliment program.”

Kaiser Permanente Reports Loss Of $4.47B In 2022 Amid Rising Costs.

Modern Healthcare (2/10, Hudson, Subscription Publication, 215K) reported,
“Kaiser Permanente is the latest health system showing signs of struggle amid
rising costs.” On Friday, the company “reported a $4.47 billion net loss in 2022,
compared with a $8.08 billion gain in 2021.” While revenue increase 2.4% to
$95.41 billion, “expenses rose 4.5% to $96.68 billion, driven by increased care
volume due to previously deferred procedures, higher costs of goods and
increased spending on labor.” Additionally, “Kaiser lost $3.2 billion due to poor
market performance on investments.”

Despite Another Year With Net Loss, Oscar Health Optimistic For Growth In
2023.

Modern Healthcare (2/10, Turner, Subscription Publication, 215K) reported,
“Oscar Health made gains on some vital financial metrics last year and beat
analysts’ expectations for the fourth quarter, triggering its share price to rise
Friday.” Oscar’s "medical loss ratio improved from 88.9% in 2021 to 85.3% last
year and its administrative expense ratio declined from 21.8% to 20.6%, the
company reported Thursday.” In the fourth quarter of 2022, the company
“recorded a $226.6 million net loss,” beating “analyst expectations of $261.3
million in net losses.” For the whole year, Oscar “endured a $610 million net
loss,” which was “up from $571 million the year before;” however, “the health
insurer predicted a better 2023,” expecting a loss of just "$75 million to $175
million.”




Providers Preparing To Use Misoprostol Alone If Lawsuit Over FDA
Approval Of Mifepristone Proves Successful.

STAT (2/10, Boodman, 262K) reported “stories about medication abortion...often
give mifepristone a starring role.” Therefore, “it might seem surprising that
American abortion providers are responding to” a lawsuit which seeks to reverse
the FDA’s approval of the drug “by preparing to forego mifepristone and use
misoprostol alone. How could that be? Wasn’t mifepristone the abortion pill, the
critical tool for ending a pregnancy in the first trimester?” The piece said the
“narrative has been backward. Biologically speaking, mifepristone is the sidekick,
and misoprostol the superhero, mifepristone the opening act while its counterpart
carries the show. ... Both regimens - either the two drugs together, or just
misoprostol — are extremely safe. And they're both very effective. Chances are,
taking misoprostol alone will work to end a pregnancy early on, but it’s likely to
come with more discomfort, cramping, and nausea.”

Abortions Occurring Later Due To Increased Demand From Out-Of-State
Patients.

The Wall Street Journal (2/12, Kusisto, Subscription Publication, 8.41M) reports
abortion clinics say months after the demise of Roe v. Wade, state restrictions are
leading to later abortions. That is because clinics are getting more out-of-state
patients in addition to the regular number from states where abortion remains
legal. In general, this is adding weeks to the amount of time it takes to get
appointments.

Maryland Governor, Dems Unveil Measures Which Seek To Expand
Protections For Reproductive Rights.

The Hill (2/10, Gans, 5.69M) reported, “Maryland Gov. Wes Moore (D) and
Democratic lawmakers are moving to make the state a ‘safe haven for abortion’
in the aftermath of the end of Roe v. Wade and more than a dozen states moving
to severely restrict access to the procedure.” On Thursday, he, "Lt. Gov. Aruna
Miller, the leaders of the state House and Senate and other state lawmakers
announced a legislative package to expand protections for reproductive rights at a
press conference.”

GOP Legislators Attempting To Bypass DAs Who Refuse To Prosecute
Violations Of Abortion Bans.



Politico (2/12, Ollstein, Messerly, 6.73M) reports Republican “lawmakers see a
major flaw in their states’ near-total abortion bans: Some local prosecutors won't
enforce them.” Georgia, Indiana, South Carolina, and Texas GOP legislators -
“frustrated by progressive district attorneys who have publicly pledged not to
bring charges under their state’s abortion laws — have introduced bills that would
allow state officials to either bypass the local prosecutors or kick them out of
office if their abortion-related enforcement is deemed too lenient.”

Abortion Rights Groups, Dems In Colorado Working On Legislation To
Regulate Crisis Pregnancy Centers.

The Denver Post (2/12, Klamann, 660K) reports pregnancy centers represent
“contested outposts in the escalating fight over abortion access in Colorado and
the United States. The facilities — known as crisis pregnancy centers — are
staunchly anti-abortion and offer limited medical services and family counseling,
with the intent of steering women away from terminating their pregnancies.
There are dozens of the facilities in Colorado, more than doubling the number of
abortion providers.” Critics contend “the organizations — which they call anti-
abortion centers - use deceptive advertising and promote the use of unproven
medical treatments.” Several “abortion access groups, together with Democrats in
the Colorado statehouse, are preparing a landmark bill to regulate how the
centers operate and confront those concerns.”

Oklahoma Senate Panel Advances Measures Which Outline Legal Abortion.

The Oklahoman (USA) (2/10, Denwalt, 371K) reported on Thursday, legislators
on an Oklahoma Senate panel “advanced two bills...that would clarify what is
(and isn't) a legal abortion in Oklahoma.” The article added, "One was introduced
to clarify the Legislature’s intent when it comes to medical procedures that
terminate pregnancy. The other stipulates that Oklahoma’s abortion laws
shouldn’t limit access to birth control drugs.”

Lawsuit Alleges Security Guards At National Archives Ordered Anti-
Abortion Advocates Not To Display Pro-Life Slogans.

The Washington Post (2/11, Kunkle, 10.52M) reported, "Antiabortion advocates
hoping to view the Constitution at the National Archives were ordered not to
display their slogans during their visit, in violation of their constitutional rights,
according to a federal lawsuit filed against the agency this week.” The pro-lifers,
“who were in the District attending the 50th Annual March for Life last month,




allege that a group of security guards at the National Archives and Record
Administration’s building told them to hide or remove buttons, hats and clothing
that contained messages such as 'Life is a HUMAN RIGHT’ and ‘Pro-Love is the
New Pro-Life’ when they entered the Rotunda, where the Constitution and its Bill
of Rights are on display.”

Almost 70% Of Americans Dissatisfied With Abortion Policies, Poll Finds.

The Hill (2/10, Melillo, 5.69M) reported almost "7 in 10 Americans are dissatisfied
with the country’s abortion policies, marking the highest rate measured in 23
years, a new Gallup poll found.” These findings “come more than seven months
after the Supreme Court struck down Roe vs. Wade, the ruling that guaranteed a
woman’s right to an abortion. Since then, many states have banned the practice
or moved to significantly curb abortion access.”

Company Has Been Trying For Years To Expand US Women’s Access To
Birth Control Pills.

Fortune (2/10, Aspan, 3.68M) reported, “It's been a long seven months for
Perrigo’s HRA Pharma, the company making a historic request to expand
American access to birth control.” Still, “after nine years of regulatory red tape,
its executives know how to be patient.” Last “July, the pharmaceutical company
made a landmark - and tragically well-timed - application to the U.S. Food and
Drug Administration. The Supreme Court had just overturned Roe v. Wade. And
as tens of millions of women lost access to abortion almost overnight, the Court
also signaled that access to contraceptives could be next in the legal crosshairs.”

Columnist Criticizes Judge Presiding Over Lawsuit Challenging FDA
Approval Of Abortion Drug.

In her Washington Post (2/10, 10.52M) column, Alexandra Petri wrote, “In
another thrilling development in this best of all possible worlds, a ruling from a
single Trump-appointed judge in Texas might undo the Food and Drug
Administration’s approval of one of the two key drugs used in medication-based
abortions and render it inaccessible nationwide. I hear you asking a question: Can
a judge just do that? Just un-approve a drug? One that’s been tested and found
extraordinarily safe over two whole decades?” Petri said this “is a real possibility,
because our legal system is working just the way it ought to work! In an ideal
society, your rights and ability to access medicine and direct the course of your




own life are guaranteed and unalterable - unless a Trump-appointed judge
named Matt decides to say, ‘Nah.”

Health Information Technology

Editorial Commends FTC For Fining GoodRx Over HIPAA Breach.

In an editorial, the Los Angeles Times (2/10, 3.37M) wrote, “Since 2017, GoodRx
has helped millions of people find deals on prescription drugs via an app and
website.” However, "what its customers may not have known is that the Santa
Monica-based health company had also been sharing information about their
prescriptions and illnesses with third parties such as Google and Facebook for
advertising purposes.” For this, the FTC has “fined GoodRx $1.5 million for
violating customers’ privacy by failing to notify them about how their data were
being used.” The Times adds, "The enforcement action is a warning to other tech
firms at a time of growth in the industry. Increasingly consumers are using apps
and wearable devices to monitor their health, and they should know exactly how
their personal information is being used.”

Human Services News

Biden Administration Credits New Migration Programs For Drop In Border
Crossings.

Roll Call (2/10, Monyak, 130K) reported that the volume of migrants
“encountered monthly at the southwest border dropped significantly in January, a
dip that Biden administration officials attribute to recent ‘carrot-and-stick’ style
migration programs.” Roll Call says border agents “reported a 40 percent drop in
total encounters with migrants last month, decreasing from a record 252,000
encounters in December to about 156,000 in January, according to data released
Friday by Customs and Border Protection.” Biden Administration officials
“attributed the decline in border crossings to recent programs aimed at
discouraging migrants from crossing the border in between ports of entry.”

Migrants Looking For US Sponsors Encounter “Underground Market.”

The AP (2/11, Snow) reported, “Pedro Yudel Bruzon was looking for someone in
the U.S. to support his effort to seek asylum when he landed on a Facebook page
filled with posts demanding up to $10,000 for a financial sponsor.” The AP says
the ads are “part of an underground market that's emerged since the Biden



administration announced it would accept 30,000 immigrants each month arriving
by air from Venezuela, Cuba, Nicaragua and Haiti.” Applicants “need someone in
the U.S., often a friend or relative, to promise to provide financial support for at
least two years.”

Judge Delays Order Setting Schedule Determining When North Carolina
Health Officials Must Provide More Accommodations For People With
Disabilities.

The AP (2/10) reported, “A trial judge has agreed to delay enforcement of his
order setting a robust schedule upon which North Carolina health officials must
provide significantly more community services for people with intellectual and
developmental disabilities while the state appeals his ruling.” The judge “had in
November set thresholds that the Department of Health and Human Services
would have to meet regularly over the next decade.” In part, that order “required
at least 3,000 people must be diverted or shifted to community-based programs
by early 2031. And he told DHHS to eliminate by mid-2032 a waiting list of
people qualified to participate in a Medicaid-funded program that helps them live
at home or outside of an institution.”

Child Care In Philadelphia Costs 22.5% The Median Household Income Per
Child.

The Philadelphia Inquirer (2/10, Ravitch) reported, “"Philadelphia families are
forced to spend a larger chunk of their pay on childcare than in any other
Pennsylvania county, new federal data show, and it’s likely affecting the number
of women in the workforce.” A new US Labor Department database “shows the
cost of childcare as a proportion of median income in every Pennsylvania county,
as well as all counties in most U.S. states. In Philadelphia, infant care costs about
22.5% of the median household income, and that’s for just one child.” Beyond
the price, “availability is a challenge as well. The number of childcare providers in
the country decreased sharply with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic and has
not fully recovered, according to a recent report from the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services.”

Brett Favre Files To Have Welfare Fraud Lawsuit Dismissed.

The AP (2/11, Pettus) reported, “Brett Favre’s lawyers filed papers Friday again
asking a Mississippi judge to dismiss the retired NFL quarterback from a lawsuit
that demands repayment of millions of dollars of welfare money intended to help



some of the poorest people in the U.S.” Last year, the Mississippi Department of
Human Services “sued Favre and more than three dozen other people or
businesses” over allegations he was involved in the improper allocation of funds
from the Temporary Assistance to Needy Families program. Favre “has repaid
$1.1 million he received for speaking fees from a nonprofit group that spent TANF
money with approval from the Mississippi Department of Human Services.” Favre
allegedly never gave the speech for which he was paid.

Kristof: New Strategies Needed To Teach Children How To Read.

In his column for the New York Times (2/11, 20.6M), Nicholas Kristof wrote that
“two-thirds of fourth graders in the United States are not proficient in reading.”
Kristof relays the growing belief that “we grown-ups have bungled the task of
teaching kids to read” along with studies that show that “the United States has
adopted reading strategies that just don’t work very well and that we haven't
relied enough on a simple starting point - helping kids learn to sound out words
with phonics.”

Opinion: Tax Benefit Parents Use To Offset Child Care Is “Hopelessly
Outdated.”

In a Bloomberg Opinion (2/12) column, contributor Alexis Leondis writes, “Over
the last four decades, the cost of child care has skyrocketed in the US. It now
takes up almost 20% of median family income per child in major cities.” However,
“the tax benefit some workers use to offset those day care or nanny expenses
has stayed the same - since 1986! When the amount was temporarily increased
during Covid, it only became more obvious that the cap was hopelessly
outdated.” Leondis concludes, “"With per-child childcare costs increasing 2,000%
since the 1970s, it just doesn’t make sense to leave the tax code stuck in the
past.”

Editorial: Hochul Should Appoint Wheelchair User To MTA Board Vacancy.

In an editorial, the New York Daily News (2/12, 2.51M) writes, “Last spring the
state Senate approved a bill 63 to zero and the Assembly did so 149 to
zero...requiring state transportation authorities have on their boards a voting
member ‘who is limited to public transit as their primary mode of transportation
because the individual has a temporary or permanent disability.” This "means a
person who uses a wheelchair will help run the agency.” However, the measure
“does not apply to” NYC’s Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA). However,




with two vacancies on the MTA’s board, the Daily News says Hochul “doesn’t have
to wait for the new law to be amended. She should put at least one wheelchair
user on the board now.”

Jeffries Claims “Extreme MAGA” Republicans View Social Security As A
“Ponzi Scheme.”

The Hill (2/10, Gans, 5.69M) reported House Minority Leader Jeffries “said on
Friday that ‘extreme MAGA’ Republicans view Social Security as a ‘Ponzi scheme,’
calling on Democrats to work to protect the program.”

Food & Import Safety

Consumer Reports Says Bindle Brand Water Bottles Pose Potential Risk Of
Lead Poisoning.

CBS News (2/10, Cerullo, 5.39M) reported, “A popular brand of insulated bottle
poses a risk of lead poisoning, according to Consumer Reports.” Consumer
Reports performed a test of the product, and “found that the Bindle bottle could
expose users to ‘extremely high’ levels of lead,” and “said some bottles contained
bisphenol A (BPA), a chemical known to cause fertility problems and some kinds
of cancers.” The advocacy group “said it found lead on the bottle’s ‘sealing dot,” a
small, circular piece of metal at the bottle’s base,” containing “lead levels that are
roughly 1,100 times higher than what'’s generally considered safe, according to
the publication, noting that anything that comes into contact with the dot is at
risk of lead contamination.”

Purina Recalls Certain Units Of Dog Food After Two Dogs Exhibit Signs Of
Vitamin D Toxicity.

The Washington Post (2/10, Gregg, 10.52M) reported, “Nestlé Purina Petcare Co.
is recalling select units of dry dog food after two dogs fell ill, the Food and Drug
Administration announced this week.” The notice “applies to certain units of
Purina Pro Plan, EL Elemental, which may contain elevated levels of vitamin D.”
The agency “said there are two confirmed cases of a dog exhibiting signs of
vitamin D toxicity while on the diet. Both recovered.”

USA Today (2/10, Alund, 12.7M) also reported.

Medicare



CMS Announces Medicare Rebate Program Under Inflation Reduction Act.

USA Today (2/10, Alltucker, 12.7M) reported, “"Medicare will begin collecting
penalties in 2025 from pharmaceutical companies that raise prices on prescription
drugs faster than the rate of inflation, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Service said” last week. Also, “on April 1, Medicare enrollees on Part B drugs,
typically administered by a doctor, might benefit from more moderate
coinsurance charges, CMS officials said.” CMS “released draft guidance Thursday
on the rebate program and will solicit feedback from the public over the next 30
days before finalizing details.”

Republican Senator Warns Medicare, Social Security In Danger Unless
Congress Acts Now.

CNN (2/12, LeBlanc, Fossum, 89.21M) reports that Sen. Mike Rounds (R-SD)
“offered Sunday a stark warning about the future of Social Security and Medicare
if Congress fails to take action now.” Appearing on CNN’s Jake Tapper on “State
of the Union,” Rounds said: “In the next 11 years, we have to have a better plan
in place than what we do today. Or we're going to see - under existing
circumstances - some reductions of as much as 24% in some sort of a benefit.
So, let’s start talking now because it's easier to fix it now that it would be five
years or six years from now.” CNN says President Biden recently “has made a
forceful argument against Republicans by highlighting his support for Social
Security and Medicare.”

Meanwhile, Politico (2/12, Olander, 6.73M) reports Rounds said that most
Republicans “don’t agree with Sen. Rick Scott’s plan to sunset programs including
Medicare and Social Security.” Rounds told Tapper: “The vast majority of us
would say that we prefer to look at it in a different direction, one of managing it,
as opposed to a discussion about having everything start over again.”

Biden Has Yet To Be Specific About How He Would Strengthen Social
Security And Medicare.

CNN (2/10, Luhby, 89.21M) reported, “In his latest move to differentiate himself
from House Republicans on entitlement programs, President Joe Biden is making
a pretty big promise” by “vowing to shore up the shaky finances of Medicare’s
trust fund, extending its solvency to the middle of the century instead of the
expected depletion date of 2028.” CNN says, “"But just how he will accomplish this
objective - as well as one to strengthen Social Security - remains to be seen.”



When reporters “asked for more information, the White House said, ‘We will
provide more details on March 9, when the president releases his budget, backed
up by full, transparent accounting.””

Biden Aims To Brand Republicans As Extreme On Social Security,
Medicare.

The Hill (2/11, 5.69M) reported President Biden focused on attacking Republicans
over Social Security and Medicare at his State of the Union speech this week, with
one strategist suggesting he has found a “sweet spot” on the issues. The speech
also served “as a preview of what's to come,” with Biden expected “to try to label
Republicans as extreme by pointing to GOP proposals that he says would lead to
changes” in both programs.

Forbes (2/10, Dorn, 10.33M) reported that Biden “headed to Florida on
Thursday, where he again attacked Republicans on the issue, telling an audience
at the University of Tampa: ‘A lot of Republicans, their dream is to cut Social
Security and Medicare. Well let me say this: If that’s your dream, I'm your
nightmare.””

McConnell Piles On To Biden’s Criticism Of Rick Scott’s Plan To Sunset
Medicare, Social Security.

The Washington Post (2/10, Wagner, 10.52M)reported that President Biden “has
been hammering Sen. Rick Scott (R-Fla.) for his plan that would require Congress
to reauthorize even popular programs such as Social Security and Medicare every
five years to keep them operating.” And, on Thursday, Senate Minority Leader
Mitch McConnell (R-KY) “joined in the criticism, suggesting that provisions in
Scott’s plan could hurt him in his bid for reelection next year in Florida, a state
with the greatest share of seniors in the nation.” McConnell “told longtime
Kentucky radio host Terry Meiners, ‘That’s not a Republican plan. That was the
Rick Scott plan.”

Meanwhile, The Hill (2/10, Shapero, 5.69M) reported that Scott “announced
a new bill on Friday to increase funding for Social Security and Medicare and
institute a higher standard for making cuts to the entitlement programs, following
President Biden’s pointed accusations during his annual address before Congress
on Tuesday.” The Hill said the legislation “aims to rescind the nearly $80 billion in
funding for the Internal Revenue Service that was approved in last year’s Inflation
Reduction Act and redirect it towards Social Security and Medicare.” It “would
also require that any cuts to Social Security or Medicare be approved by a two-




thirds vote in Congress and would block Medicare savings from being used for
other spending initiatives.”
Also reporting the story was Roll Call (2/10, Lesniewski, 130K).

Advocacy Groups Say CMS’ Lack Of Insurance Coverage For New
Alzheimer’s Drug Is Discriminatory.

TIME (2/10, Park, 18.1M) reported that despite the hope offered by newly-
approved Alzheimer’s disease treatment lecanemab (Leqembi), for many patients,
“at $26,500 a year, the treatment is financially out of reach.” However, “Medicare
won't cover it” without more evidence on efficacy, as Legembi is “only the second
medication approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to target
amyloid.” Advocacy groups are calling out CMS, “which oversees Medicare, for
adding treatment coverage restrictions that weren't put in place for other first-in-
class therapies to treat diseases like HIV or cancer.” And legislators “proposed a
bill last November that would prevent CMS from restricting access to entire
classes of approved drugs without evaluating the merits of each individually.”
HHS is mentioned.

Column: Republicans “Haven’t Earned A Whole Lot Of Trust” On Social
Security, Medicare.

In a column for the Washington Post (2/10, 10.52M), Paul Waldman wrote, “After
Republicans’ heckling of” President Biden’s comments that they “dream” of
cutting Social Security and Medicare during his State of the Union address, “the
White House clearly thinks it has struck political gold and has sent the president
out to keep up this drumbeat.” Waldman wrote that “if Republicans want the
public to believe that their passion for defending those popular safety-net
programs should be beyond doubt, they are on shaky ground. Even if Biden might
sometimes exaggerate what his opponents believe, this debate carries with it a
history and a context that make it hard for Republicans to claim they are being
unfairly maligned.” Waldman wrote, “The trouble is, Republicans haven't earned a
whole lot of trust when it comes to programs that were created by Democrats,
and that have been sustained and defended by Democrats in the face of decades
of Republican attacks.”

Letter: Seniors Can’t Afford Benefit Cuts, But Wealthy Can Afford To Pay
More.



In a letter to the Washington Post (2/10, 10.52M), National Committee to
Preserve Social Security and Medicare President and CEO Max Richtman wrote,
“Most of the plans endorsed in the editorial “Yes, entitlements need to be
reformed” ultimately would cut benefits and undermine the fundamental nature of
both programs. The assertion that only high-income earners would be affected by
these “reforms” is either disingenuous or naive. Raising the eligibility age for
either program would be a huge benefit cut for all seniors. Means-testing benefits
would have to reach deep into the middle class to significantly improve solvency.
Investing some of Social Security’s reserves on Wall Street would put the
program on a slippery slope toward privatization.” Richtman wrote, "Most seniors
cannot withstand benefit cuts, but the wealthy can afford to pay more to help
keep these programs financially viable for future generations.”

Medicaid & CHIP

Biden Administration Begins Approving Medicaid Funds To Be Spent On
Food Programs.

The Wall Street Journal (2/12, Armour, Peterson, Subscription Publication, 8.41M)
reports the Biden Administration has begun approving requests from states to use
Medicaid to pay for food programs. This comes as policymakers explore the
potential health and cost benefits of the so-called food as medicine approach.

Medicaid Could Be Next Target For Republican Cuts.

HuffPost (2/10, Cohn, 363K) reported that if GOP leaders "manage to keep their
party away from Medicare and Social Security” and that Republicans also “carry
out their threat to block an increase in the federal government’s borrowing
authority, jeopardizing America’s and maybe the world’s economy, until
Democrats agree to major spending cuts,” their actions “would almost certainly
force cuts in another big program: Medicaid.” HuffPost says Medicaid “"now covers
more people than Medicare, the beloved Great Society-era program that provides
basic insurance to the nation’s elderly” and that growth “is a problem, as most
Republicans and their conservative allies see it.”

Many States Not Prepared For End Of Automatic Medicaid Enroliment.

Vox (2/13, Scott, 1.88M) reports, “Perhaps the greatest success of the American
health care system these last few benighted years is” that the “uninsured rate
has reached a historic low of about 8 percent.” The low rate is due to “the slew of



emergency provisions that the government enacted in response to the Covid
crisis,” with the freeze on Medicaid eligibility “likely the single largest factor.” But
“in April, that will end,” and the Biden Administration “estimates upward of 15
million people...could lose coverage, a finding that independent analysts pretty
much agree with.” And many, “-- even most, according to some projections -
could be people who are actually still eligible for Medicaid but slip between the
cracks of the system.” Although automatic re-enrollment using public information
is mandatory under the ACA, many states do not enforce the law, and several
states are not taking re-enrollment issues seriously, especially Florida.

“Influential Group Of Conservative Intellectuals” Back Family Benefits.

The New York Times (2/10, Al, Goldstein, 20.6M) highlighted “an influential
group of conservative intellectuals with a direct line to elected politicians” have
endorsed policies that “sound like part of a progressive platform,” like “sending
cash to parents, with few strings attached,” expanding Medicaid, and “providing
child care subsidies to families earning six figures.” The Times added while these
conservatives “generally oppose abortion rights,” and “often resist the trans
rights movement,” they assert providing financial support to families “is a
pragmatic way to prop up conservative values alongside new restrictions on
abortion.”

Health & Medical News

Some Scientists Say Biden’s Cancer Moonshot Most Likely To Help Already
Rich Industry.

Politico (2/10, Schumaker, 6.73M) reported, “President Joe Biden’s pledge to ‘end
cancer as we know it is a rare sliver of common ground between Democrats and
Republicans.” However, “cancer researchers are less unified about the moonshot
than Washington policymakers.” Contrarian scientists said that “cancer research
is funded well enough...and investing more in high-tech individualized treatments
is more likely to help the wealthy live longer than it is to save those most likely to
die of the disease: the poor and people of color.” Recently, Biden “asked
Congress to reauthorize the National Cancer Act,” which “would help the National
Cancer Institute support researchers around the country by building clinical trial
networks and more robust data systems, according to Danielle Carnival, the
White House’s moonshot coordinator.”



Biden Places Cancer Research At Top Of Unity Agenda.

Cancer Letter (2/10, Ong) reported behind a paywall, “President Joe Biden
mentioned cancer 13 times in his impassioned State of the Union address and
placed cancer research at the top of his Unity Agenda - an indication that his
administration would continue to prioritize funding for cancer research in fiscal
year 2024.”

Data Indicate So Far This Year, State Legislators Have Introduced 80 Bills
Seeking To Limit Access To Gender-Affirming Care.

CNN (2/11, Cole, 89.21M) reported several “bills seeking to restrict access to
gender-affirming care for trans youth have been introduced by Republican state
lawmakers this year, with debates around the issue reaching new heights thanks
to proposals that would dramatically expand the scope of bans on such care.”
Over “80 bills seeking to restrict access to gender-affirming care have been
introduced around the country through February 9, according to data compiled by
the American Civil Liberties Union and shared with CNN.”

Florida Physicians’ Board Expands Ban On Gender-Affirming Care.

The AP (2/10, Schneider) reported a ban on “puberty blocking hormones and
gender-affirming surgeries for minors in Florida was tightened further after a
board overseeing doctors eliminated an exception for clinical trials Friday at the
request of Florida Gov. Ron DeSantis’ administration.” Certain "members of the
public attending the meeting in Tallahassee shouted expletives, and law
enforcement officers positioned themselves in the front of the room after the vote
by the Florida Board of Osteopathic Medicine.”

The Tampa Bay (FL) Times (2/10, Ellenbogen, Ogozalek, 762K) also covered
the story.

Missouri AG Says Provider Should Halt Treatments For Transgender Youth
Following Complaint About Alleged Misconduct.

The Washington Post (2/10, Gowen, 10.52M) reported Missouri Attorney General
Andrew Bailey (R) “on Friday called for a halt to drug treatments for transgender

youth at a pediatric care center in St. Louis after a whistleblower complaint
alleged misconduct by those treating children for gender dysphoria and other
issues.” Bailey “said his office was investigating Washington University’s
Transgender Center at St. Louis Children’s Hospital after a former case manager



alleged that medical professionals had used experimental drugs on children and
distributed puberty blockers and hormones without proper assessment and
parental consent.”

The AP (2/10, Ballentine) reported, “"The state Social Services Department,
state licensing agency, Republican U.S. Sen. Josh Hawley and Washington
University also are investigating.”

The St. Louis Post-Dispatch (2/11, Erickson, Suntrup, 694K) also covered
the story.

Nebraska Legislators Mulling Bill That Would Allow Medical Providers To
Cite Religious, Ethical Beliefs In Denying Certain Treatments.

The AP (2/10, Beck) reported legislators in Nebraska “are following the path of
other conservative states in considering a bill that would allow medical providers,
facilities and insurers to cite their religious, ethical or moral beliefs in denying
some medical treatments. Critics say it's simply another way to target abortion
rights and the LGBTQ community.” The measure “includes nearly three pages of
language protecting providers who conscientiously object to providing treatment
from lawsuits, criminal charges and professional ethics charges.”

The Omaha (NE) World-Herald (2/10, Bamer, Stoddard, 509K) also covered
the story.

Utah Governor Defends New Law Which Bans Gender-Affirming Care For
Minors.

NBC News (2/12, Concepcion, 4.91M) reports on Sunday, Utah Gov. Spencer Cox
(R) “defended a bill he signed last month that bars transgender minors from
receiving gender-affirming medical care, saying that he wants to see more data
on the effects of those treatments.” During “an interview on NBC News' ‘Meet the
Press,” Cox...said, 'It’s not just about providing care or not providing care, it's
about whether we might potentially be harming young people, not having enough
evidence to see what the long-term results of this are and providing better
psychiatric help for those young people who are going through this.””

Chicago-Area Children Staying Longer In Hospitals Due To Shortage Of In-
Home Pediatric Nurses.

The Chicago Tribune (2/12, Schencker, 2.03M) reports throughout “the Chicago
area, children with complex, chronic conditions are finding themselves stuck in
hospitals longer than they should be because it’s so difficult to find in-home




pediatric nurses. That, in turn, can mean fewer available hospital beds for all kids,
something that became a serious problem in the fall as respiratory illnesses in
children surged.” At one children’s hospital, "about one-fourth of the hospital’s 27
patients are stable enough to go home but can’t because they can’t find nurses to
help them once they get there.”

Shkreli Urges Judge To Not Hold Him In Civil Contempt For Failure To
Provide Information.

Reuters (2/10) reported, “Martin Shkreli on Friday urged a U.S. judge not to hold
him in civil contempt for failing to provide federal and state regulators with
information to determine whether he is violating a lifetime ban from working in
the pharmaceutical industry.” In a court filing, Shkreli “said he has complied with
the February 2022 ban ‘as extensively as possible and in good faith,” and has
provided the materials sought by the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) and seven
states.” The lifetime “ban also included a $64.6 million civil fine, which Shkreli
said he is ‘so far unable’ to pay.”

Novartis Expanding Production, Facilities Of Cancer Treatment Radioligand
Therapy.

CNBC (2/11, Capoot, 7.34M) reported on a form of targeted cancer treatment,
radioligand therapy, which, while effective, “expires within days after it's
manufactured.” But “pharmaceutical company Novartis believes the returns will
be worth the challenge of mastering this race against time.” Novartis “currently
produces two radioligand” therapies - neuroendocrine tumors treatment
Lutathera and prostate cancer treatment Pluvicto — “"both approved by the Food
and Drug Administration.” Novartis "manufactures radioligand therapy at three
sites in Italy, Spain and New Jersey, and has a fourth facility slated to open in
Indiana next year.” Fred Hutchinson Cancer Center molecular imaging and
therapy Director Dr. Delphine Chen is quoted.

RedHill Biopharma Exchanges Rights For Top Commercial Drug Movantik
To Cancel Debt With HealthCare Royalty Partners.

The Triangle (NC) Business Journal (2/10, Ezzone, Subscription Publication, 854K)
reported Raleigh pharmaceutical company RedHill Biopharma “is moving forward
after exchanging the rights to its top commercial asset,” constipation treatment
Movantik, “for the cancelation of more than $100 million in debt obligations.”
RedHill “announced Monday it has reached an agreement to transfer its drug




Movantik to Connecticut-based HealthCare Royalty Partners.” RedHill “plans to
replace the revenue lost from Movantik by ramping up commercial efforts of its
two” FDA-approved products, Helicobacter pylori infection treatment Talicia and
traveler’s diarrhea treatment Aemcolo.

Cleveland Clinic Partners With Anixa Biosciences For Triple-Negative
Breast Cancer Vaccine Phase 1b Study.

Popular Science (2/10, Baisas, 7.65M) reported, “"Researchers at Cleveland Clinic
launched their next step in a study of a vaccine aimed at preventing triple-
negative breast cancer.” The Clinic’s “"new phase 1b study will enroll cancer-free
individuals who are at a high risk for developing breast cancer” and who “have
also decided to voluntarily undergo prophylactic mastectomy to lower their risk of
developing breast cancer.” The Cleveland Clinic “study is funded by the United
States Department of Defense and will be conducted at Cleveland Clinic’s main
campus in Cleveland, Ohio,” in partnership with Anixa Biosciences, Inc. The very
“first therapeutic cancer vaccine (Provenge) was approved by the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) in 2010.”

Spruce Biosciences Raises $53.6M PIPE Deal To Fund Clinical Trials For
CAH Drug.

The San Francisco Business Times (2/10, Leuty, Subscription Publication, 895K)
reported a South San Francisco biotech company, Spruce Biosciences Inc.,
“hoping to deliver top-line results from key drug studies targeting a genetic
hormonal disorder, raised $53.6 million in a private investment in a public entity,
or PIPE, deal.” The funding “extends its financial runway from first-half 2024 into
early 2025.” By then Spruce “will have top-line results from two mid-stage clinical
trials of its drug, called tildacerfont, in adults with congenital adrenal hyperplasia”
(CAH). The drug “would eliminate the need for high doses of steroids to balance
out-of-control hormones.” Currently “long-term use of high-dose steroids comes
with side effects and there are no Food and Drug Administration-approved
treatments for CAH.”

FDA Recalls Alfia Weight Loss Capsules For Containing A Harmful Drug.

The Miami Herald (2/13, Cetoute, 647K) reports, "The FDA has recalled Alfia
Weight Loss Capsules, made by a Broward County company, for containing a
harmful hidden drug not used in decades.” The FDA on Wednesday “advised to
not purchase or use Alfia Weight Loss Capsules that were sold online and in some



retail stores.” An “FDA laboratory analysis confirmed a finding of sibutramine in
the weight loss pill,” which “is known to substantially increase blood pressure
and/or heart rate in some people and may create a significant risk for people with
a history of coronary artery disease, congestive heart failure, arrhythmias or
stroke. If the pill is mixed with other medications it could be life-threatening, the
FDA said.”

Sanders To Summon Corporate Executives To Testify Before Congress As
Senate Health Committee Chairman.

The New York Times (2/12, Stolberg, 20.6M) reports, “In two unsuccessful bids
for the White House, Senator Bernie Sanders” (D-VT) “"made no secret of his
disdain for billionaires.” And now “in what could be his final act in Washington, he
has the power to summon them to testify before Congress — and he has a few
corporate executives in his sights.” The list includes Moderna CEO Stéphane
Bancel, Amazon founder Jeff Bezos, and Starbucks CEO Howard Schultz. Sanders
“views them as union busters whose companies have resorted to ‘really vicious
and illegal’ tactics to keep workers from organizing.” As the “"new chairman of the
Senate Committee on Health, Education, Labor and Pensions,” Sanders has
“sweeping jurisdiction over issues that have animated his rise in politics, such as
access to health care, the high cost of prescription drugs and workers’ rights.”

Rolling Stone (2/11, Voght, 12.39M) reported that as chairman, “Bernie
Sanders is living, as he puts it, in a ‘two-fold world.”” Sanders explains, “On the
one hand, I'm trying to do what I can in a bipartisan way,” referring to “a list of
the cascading crises in health care, education, and labor Sanders thinks he could
recruit some Republican allies to help solve.” But Sanders adds, “I'm also going to
continue to fight for a vision, which is not going to be passed in this Congress.”
Sander’s wishlist includes “Medicare for All, tuition-free college, federal
protections for workers to unionize - the familiar planks of his two insurgent runs
for the presidency.” Sanders said, "I'm not going to give up on those things.”

FDA Places Partial Hold On Blueprint Medicines Cancer Drug Trial.

Reuters (2/10, Jain) reported, “"Blueprint Medicines Corp said on Friday the U.S.
drug regulator had put on partial hold an early-stage trial testing its experimental
cancer drug due to safety concerns.” Blueprint said that “"some patients faced
episodes of light sensitivity and blurred vision.” Blueprint Medicines’ Chief Medical
Officer Becker Hewes “said the company was working with the Food and Drug



Administration to investigate the adverse events and amend the trial protocol to
enable investigators to monitor and manage the events should they occur.”

Endpoints News (2/12, Patchen) reports, “On Friday, the Massachusetts-
based biotech said the FDA informed Blueprint two days ago that it is placing a
partial hold on a Phase I/II study, also known as the VELA trial, looking at BLU-
222 in advanced solid tumors.” The FDA’s “partial hold was due to adverse events
being observed in a ‘limited number’ of patients, Blueprint said.” Blueprint’s
“release said patients that are enrolled will continue with the study, but no more
will be added until the hold is resolved.”

Study Finds Minnesotans Experiencing Homelessness Have Three-Times
Higher Death Rate.

The Minneapolis Star Tribune (2/11, Serres, 855K) reported, “"A major new study
shows that Minnesotans experiencing homelessness die at three times the rate of
other Minnesotans, and substance abuse accounts for about a third of their
deaths.” The Minnesota Department of Health released the study in January, and
“found that deaths from substance use are 10 times higher among homeless
Minnesotans than the overall state population.” Hennepin Healthcare Research
Institute researchers, who prepared the report, “found that 20-year-olds
experiencing homelessness in Minnesota have the same likelihood of dying as 50-
year-olds in the general population.” The report “calls for a coordinated effort to
elevate housing as a ‘life-saving strategy,’ though it stops short of analyzing
current methods for combating homelessness.”

Scientists Frustrated With Chinese Biophysicist’s Refusal To Discuss
Research On Heritable Genome-Editing Technology.

Nature (2/12, Mallapaty, 194K) reports, “"He Jiankui, the Chinese biophysicist who
shocked the world by creating the first children with edited genomes” as a
treatment for HIV, “says research must accept moral and ethical constraints, but
is otherwise refusing to speak about the work that landed him in jail for three
years.” His “silence is frustrating some scientists, who say he should answer
questions about his past research before publicizing his latest plans to use
genome-editing technology in people” as a treatment for Duchenne muscular
dystrophy (DMD). And “some researchers worry that interest in He Jiankui is
diverting attention away from more important ethical issues around heritable
genome editing.”



Analysis ldentifies Highly-Cited Cancer-Genetics Papers With DNA, RNA
Sequence Errors.

Nature (2/10, Kwon, 194K) reported, "The prevalence of mistakes in published
gene research could be more widespread than previously thought, according to an
analysis of cancer-genetics papers in two high-impact journals.” A team led by
Australia’s University of Sydney cancer researcher Jennifer Byrne “has identified
some highly cited studies that contain errors in the DNA or RNA sequences of
reagents.” Reagents are used in science “for various reasons...and if the
sequences are wrongly reported it could affect the reproducibility of the
research.” Currently "“it is unclear whether the errors are accidental or indicate
misconduct,” and scientists agree” that the presence of such mistakes in the
scientific literature is worrying.” The study has not yet been peer reviewed and
was “published on the preprint server bioRxiv on 3 February.”

Scientists To Publish Entire Genome Of One Human Before End Of 2023.

BBC News (2/10, Marshall, 876K) reported that “before the end of 2023,” there
“will be a seminal moment - the publication online of the entire genome of” Leon
Peshkin, a single *human being, end to end with no gaps.” Although the “first
draft of the human genome was released in 2001,” the composite sequence from
several peoples’ DNA “had major gaps and errors.” Only now “in the last few
years has technology advanced to the point that it is possible to read the entire
human genome, without gaps and with minimal errors.” And “the geneticists
involved” in the Human Genome Project (HGP) “now want to sequence the
genomes of people from around the world” to explore genetic diversity, what DNA
does, and to “help doctors diagnose and treat us when we get sick.”

Financial Filings Reveal Hospital Oligarchy In Orlando, Florida.

STAT (2/10, Herman, 262K) reported, “A recent financial filing from a large, tax-
exempt hospital system in Orlando provides a glimpse, and serves as a reminder,
of just how concentrated America’s hospital ma